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Connecting with
our customers
The convergence of digital applications, low-cost solar
and the development of battery storage is gaining
pace and is leading to greater choice, convenience
and control for our customers. We are rethinking,
refreshing and reimagining how we use energy in
everyday life.
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Highlights at a glance

HYDRO EFFICIENCY

7.7GWh

We’re meeting the changing energy world by delivering
simple and easy energy services.

15%
LPG CUSTOMERS UP

to 15,890 in FY2016

EBITDAF

335m

$

increase compared to the past decade
COAL GENERATION

36.5%

to 811GWh

compared to prior year

in FY2016

2bn

$

FY2015 $2bn

TOTAL DIVIDEND

16.4 cents

Partnership with Department
of Conservation to protect
the Whio re-signed for
another five years

in FY2016

10

million barrels of

oil produced up to
October 2015

Bill Holiday, our
Winter 2015 electricity
acquisition campaign,
significantly exceeded
targets and was awarded
Silver at the New Zealand
Direct Marketing Awards.

9%

REVENUE

16.6%
KUPE

CARBON DIOXIDE
EMISSIONS DOWN

FY2015 $345m

HIGHLIGHTS

GAS GENERATION

SUMMER SOL AR PROMOTION

TRUSTED TRADES WEBSITE

Solar panels installed at
commercial and residential
premises from Christchurch
to Whangarei.

Launched May 2016

per share

NET PROFIT AFTER TAX OF

184m

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

$

32%

FY2015 $105m

646,185

ENERGY ONLINE WEBSITE

16%

TOTAL ELECTRICIT Y AND GAS

Customer connections — up 1.5%

10million

views of Energy Online’s
Goodbye Door Knockers
video on YouTube

Annual growth in customer
connections to Energy Online

Energy Online launched a
new website delivering more
sign ups in the first 15 days
than the previous 15 years
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4.7%

Increase in retail sales
volume of electricity

184.2m

$

Net profit after tax

CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

Steering through change
The Board is committed
to tangible change to
ensure the Company
is best placed to take
advantage of the many
opportunities that change
inevitably brings.

Since we last met at our Annual
Shareholder Meeting in October
2015, the focus of the Board of
Directors has been to recruit a new
Chief Executive capable of leading the
Company and ensuring it performs
to its full potential in a rapidly
evolving new energy world. The New
Zealand energy market is dynamic
and having a person with the right
experience, who actively embraces
and delivers the change required, will
enable Genesis Energy to build on its
existing strengths and provide market
leadership into the future.
With many commercial and market
challenges facing the Company
during the year – retail competition,
static demand growth, low oil and
gas prices, and the future of the
Rankine generation units at Huntly
being extended – a smooth transition
from the outgoing Chief Executive,
Albert Brantley, to our new leader was
imperative to ensure the business did
not lose momentum.

retailing. We also continue to identify
areas that can deliver greater returns
through better analysis and by looking
to international best practice.
The determination to operate
profitably was the chief driver
for announcing in August 2015 a

It is essential we have a market
structure and regulatory framework
that does not inadvertently stifle
new investment and does not suppress
the natural consumer demand for
more choice, simpler services and
smarter technologies.

The Board remains satisfied with
the higher-than-forecast net profit
after tax of $184.2 million and the
Company’s ability to pay the projected
final shareholder dividend of $82.0
million. A final dividend of 8.2 cents
per share will be paid in October 2016
to bring the full year dividend to
16.4 cents per share.
THE ENERGY MARKET IS
RAPIDLY EVOLVING

CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

Dear Shareholders

Strong cash flows are enabling the
Company to continue to deliver good
yields for our shareholders. Pretax earnings, however, were under
pressure as the Company was unable
to avoid the full impact of wider market
factors such as significantly reduced
international oil prices, a drier-thanaverage autumn, above average nationwide temperatures and aggressive
competition for retail customers.

We were very pleased therefore
to invite Marc England to lead
Genesis Energy at this important
juncture for the energy sector and
that he chose to accept the challenge.
We are confident he will deliver
positive outcomes for the Company
and shareholders. Building on his
very recent experience at AGL in
Sydney, Marc has moved quickly in
his first three months to work with
the Board and Executive team on a
major strategy and business structure
review that will see Genesis Energy
well placed to succeed in the New
Zealand market.
The Board of Directors also wishes
to acknowledge the leadership of
Albert Brantley, who left the Company
to take up a new role in the rebuilding
of Christchurch. Albert did much
to transform Genesis Energy from
a state-owned enterprise to a listed
company focused on delivering for its
customers and shareholders.

Globally, the way in which energy
is generated, how it is used and how
it is delivered is rapidly evolving.
For the New Zealand energy market
this presents both challenges and
opportunities. It presents opportunities
for companies such as Genesis Energy
to more effectively use our wealth of
data to engage customers in new and
value-creating ways, while presenting
challenges to regulators and policymakers to keep pace with changes.
The Board and Management are
actively participating and developing
strategies to lead the way in a far more
dynamic sector that is seeing the
convergence of digital applications,
mobility, smart appliances, low-cost
solar and battery technology. This
convergence is likely to gain pace in
the very near future and where other
traditional energy companies may fail
to adapt, Genesis Energy is laying the
foundations to provide our customers
with desirable energy services that
meet their lifestyle expectations and,
in doing so, deliver shareholders with
solid returns.
The Company’s first task is to optimise
our traditional revenue streams with
a continued focus on driving greater
efficiency to maximise returns
from the existing core activities of
generation, fuel production and

retirement date of December 2018
for the two remaining Rankine Units
at Huntly Power Station. At the
time Genesis Energy said it would
only reconsider that decision if market
conditions changed significantly.
Subsequently a number of competitors
retired thermal generation plant
leading to a substantial market
change and concerns for security
of supply post-2018. As a result
new more profitable commercial
arrangements were entered into
between Genesis Energy and a
number of parties for up to four years
to the end of 2022.

OUTLOOK

While there are challenges facing
this company and the wider energy
industry, the Board is committed
to tangible change to ensure the
Company is best placed to take
advantage of the many opportunities
that change inevitably brings.
Genesis Energy is a strong company
with significant customer knowledge
and insights, well-managed assets
and a healthy balance sheet. It is
positioning itself for a successful
future as an enabler of energy services
for New Zealanders’ homes and
businesses nationwide.

REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

The consumer market for energy, how
it is produced and used, is changing
quickly. We believe there is a very real
risk that the regulatory environment
is not moving fast enough to support
consumer demand for distributed
energy production and new digital
data-driven services. As an industry,
we need to reduce infrastructure costs
and deliver world-leading solutions for
our customers. Genesis Energy will be
striving to take a leading position in this
debate during this change.

DAME JENNY SHIPLEY, DNZM
CHAIRMAN, GENESIS ENERGY

CONTACT THE BOARD

If you have a question or
comment for the Board of
Directors, you can email them to:
board@genesisenergy.co.nz

GENESIS ENERGY Annual Report 2016
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How we create value
Creating value for shareholders,
customers and stakeholders through
the utilisation of six key resources:

OUTPUT AND VALUE

FINANCIAL

Total Assets: $3,778m

MANUFACTURED

HOW WE CREATE VALUE

We use coal and gas to
generate electricity at
Huntly Power Station

NATURAL

Water and wind flows
through four hydro and
wind power schemes

SOCIAL

We partner with our
stakeholders for better
social outcomes

HOW WE
CREATE VALUE

Strategy for the future
Leverage customer insights
React to external market conditions
Smart resource allocation
Active energy trading

INTELLECTUAL
We leverage customer
and data insights

HUMAN
RESOURCES

860 people, focussed
on customer needs

CUSTOMERS

Customers receive value through
great service, reliable product
delivery and, in the case of gas,
added value packages.

SHAREHOLDERS
As a robust business with strong
cash flows, Genesis Energy provided
value for shareholders with a Total
Shareholder Return of 32.3 per cent
in the 2016 financial year.

COMMUNITY
Communities and the environment
benefit from Genesis Energy through
supportive partnerships, funding
agreements and employee
volunteering efforts.

08
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CUSTOMER NEEDS ARE
EVOLVING QUICKLY

Refreshing our strategy
OPTIMISE

Lean and efficient business
focused on winning and
keeping customers
INVEST

Leverage data and digital
systems for growth
INNOVATE

Use insights and
technology to build enduring
customer relationships

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

Reimagining our future
Genesis Energy’s future
as an energy retailer is
more than just electrons
and great service – it will
be to develop deep and
enduring relationships
with our customers.

Since my arrival in New Zealand in
May, with the support of the Board,
the Executive team and I have
concentrated on developing a strategy
and structure for the business that
will create flexibility to deliver in an
evolving market. My focus has been,
and will continue to be, on ensuring the
Company has a strong purpose, the
right strategies in place to deliver in the
best interests of shareholders, and has
the capability to execute our strategies.
After working several years in the
energy sector in the United Kingdom
and Australia it is clear to me that
the New Zealand energy market,
while having a higher proportion of
renewable electricity than most, is
facing the same need to reinvent
itself to deliver value to customers,
irrespective of generation mix. New
technology in homes and businesses
continues to influence consumers’
habits. Disruptive new business models
are now the norm and future declining
revenue from centralised assets as
distributed energy options become
price comparable is part of the wider
energy environment.

When we add in the New Zealandspecific issues of weather-dependent
revenue and the proliferation of both
distributors and retailers, we are
presented with a strong case for
re-evaluating our business model.
At a high level, the Company has three
strategic themes – optimise, innovate
and invest. ‘Optimise’ has been a key
theme for the Company in recent
years and some innovation has taken
place – there are good examples of
efficiencies gained through innovative
use of operating data or the fast
roll-out of mobile apps for customers.
However, there is much work still to
be done.
We are now looking for opportunities
to streamline the business further
and gain better value from our existing
assets. The immediate plan is to optimise
and seek savings that can be reinvested
in parts of the business where there is
real potential for growth.

In the past year, the Company has
continued to experience heightened
competition for customer accounts. It
has successfully maintained its leading
share of customer accounts creating
a better customer experience by
simplifying the interactions, providing
home energy and broadband accounts
when moving home through unique
partnerships, and offering more
consumer-friendly energy packages –
particularly with natural gas and LPG.

After the Company’s August 2015
announcement to retire the Rankine
Units in 2018 and subsequent market
movements, both the Electricity
Authority and the System Operator
determined that there was a high risk of
shortages post–2018, especially if the
country experiences dry conditions.
In light of the changes in the market
Genesis Energy entered into bilateral
commercial arrangements that will

The Company is optimising parts of
the business that are not dependent
on rainfall or cold winters and which
are less volatile than others if we have a
dry year. In those terms, we have been
considering the role Kupe plays. Kupe
is a value driver, and provider of stable
earnings through our equity ownership.
More importantly, Kupe provides
revenue that can drive the foundation
for further investment.

While our customer accounts have
grown slightly during the year, the
constant need to promote discounted
prices to replace churning customers
drives unnecessary cost to the business,
and unnecessary costs onto customers.
Genesis Energy’s future as an energy
retailer is more than just electrons and
great service – it will be to develop deep
and enduring relationships with our
customers. New technology and digital
applications enabling more and more
consumers to take control of their energy
usage and become energy producers as
well as consumers will be the new face
of New Zealand’s energy market.
To meet this change, Genesis Energy
is positioning itself with the right
strategy, resources and data-driven
insights to create a value, not volume,
relationship with our customers.
Building a strong digital platform for
the Company has been a key strategic
deliverable in the past year. The core of
the digital infrastructure work has been
completed and the Company is now
focused on gaining better customer
insights from the rich data we hold and
on accelerating our digital capabilities.
MAXIMISING THE VALUE FROM A
STRONG SET OF GENERATION ASSETS

Genesis Energy’s hydro power
schemes in the North and South
Islands continue to deliver strong
results for the Company. The
locational diversity paid off this year,
with good inflows to the South Island
Tekapo scheme off-setting lower
than average inflows to the Tongariro
and Waikaremoana schemes in
central North Island. Overall, hydro
generation was up one per cent.

keep the two Rankine Units available
until at least the end of 2022. The
new contracts cover the operational
and capital costs of keeping the Units
in the market. The total committed
generation volume under these
contracts is less than the output of
one Rankine Unit, so Genesis Energy
retains good flexibility to meet the
market and cover plant outages.
These contracts provide an extended
transition from coal to loweremitting generation sources while
uncertainty around the future of the
Tiwai Point smelter remains. This is a
very good outcome for New Zealand
and Genesis Energy as the sector
continues to evolve.
KUPE

Kupe provides a competitive advantage
to Genesis Energy with its steady and
reliable stream of gas and condensates.
We can plan thermal production
around the flow of gas and have
strong supplies of gas and LPG for our
customer base.

RESHAPING THE COMPANY

As the Company enters into a new era
of more customer-controlled energy
resources we need to ensure we have the
right structure, capabilities and flexibility
in place to develop deep and enduring
relationships with our customers.
Therefore, we have refreshed our
strategy to take advantage of the
rapidly evolving energy market and
have reorganised the Executive Team
as the first phase of a longer term plan
to reshape Genesis Energy into an
agile and adaptive organisation that will
focus on optimisation and innovation.
The Company’s vision and strategy
require the whole of the Executive
Team to be focused on customers and
the drive to deliver a greater number of
energy products and services to build a
deeper relationship with our customers.

MARC ENGLAND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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FY15 VS FY16 EBITDAF

In FY2016:

75.8%
Net profit up

$350m
$11M

$340m

$7M

$6M

$330m

$12M

$6M
$5M

$320m

$4M

$5M
$4M

$310m
$300m

$8M

$3M

$345M
$335M

$290m

2.5% 2.0%

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REPORT

Dividends up
		

Operating
cash flow up

Maximising value
Genesis Energy has
produced a resilient
result through improved
cost and working capital
control, a focus on capital
expenditure and by
growing customer volumes.

Net profit after tax was significantly
higher than that of FY2015 due largely to
the revaluation of the generating assets
– resulting in the write-back of value in
relation to Tekapo and the Rankine Units
at the Huntly Power Station, and reduced
depletion of oil and gas assets following
a 40.0 per cent increase in underlying
reserves year on year.

$270m
$260m

FY15
EBITDAF

C&I GAS
PRICING

METHANEX
GAS PRICES

OIL AND
LPG PRICING

Following a review of reserves data
provided by the Kupe Field Operator,
total remaining proven and probable
reserves have increased by 121.4 PJe
(40.0 per cent) to 387.9 PJe as at
30 June 2016.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REPORT

Genesis Energy has produced a resilient
result through improved cost and
working capital control, a focus on
capital expenditure and by growing
customer volumes. This was against a
range of challenging market factors
including significantly lower global fuel
market prices, warmer temperatures,
softer electricity spot and Time Of
Use market prices, a highly pricecompetitive retail market and two
continuous years of below-average
hydro inflows within our catchments.

$280m

Earnings before net finance expense,
income tax, depreciation, depletion,
amortisation, impairment, fair value
changes and other gains and losses
(EBITDAF) was $335.3 million
compared to $344.8 million in
FY2015. Key drivers for the lower
earnings result were the softer global
oil prices and increasing costs of
maintaining a stable customer base.
While the Group had a high level
of oil hedging, lower spot oil prices
had a flow on effect as the international
oil price impacted the price received
for wholesale gas sales to Methanex
and other industrial parties as well as
prices received for LPG.
Gas production from Kupe during
FY2016 was three per cent down on
FY2015 levels due to a three-yearly
maintenance shutdown. In October
2015, Kupe reached the milestone of
10 million barrels of oil produced.

The reserves increase provides additional
volume from within the existing field
development. It is also expected that
further capital investment to lengthen
the life of the field is likely to be less
than initially expected and later than
originally anticipated.
In response to the high churn of
customers across the electricity and
gas retail sector, the cost to maintain
a stable customer base increased. In
FY2016, the Group implemented a
new accounting treatment to defer
and amortise customer acquisition
costs over the average customer
tenure period. In FY2016, this led
to a $10.9 million deferral of costs
at 30 June 2016.
An increasing focus on building our
presence in the business and Time Of
Use markets resulted in a five per cent
year-on-year volume increase and
increase in customer accounts.
In our Generation business, the focus
has been on continuing to optimise our
working capital by restructuring our
fuel book. This has resulted in a
reduction in the coal stockpile from

KUPE THREE
YEARLY
OUTAGE

KUPE YIELD
DECLINE

SPOT
WHOLESALE
RETAIL
RETAIL
RANKINE
MARKET
GAS
ACQUISITION ACQUISITION INVENTORY
CONDITIONS OPTIMISATION
COST
COST
WRITE-BACK
DEFERRED

721 to 408 kilotonnes and $30.8 million
fewer coal purchases in FY2016. This was
a significant driver of our increased free
cash flow. Additionally we have focused
on optimising our stay-in-business capital
reinvestment which has seen a reduction
of $30.0 million since FY2013.
Above-average temperatures and
high South Island lake levels drove
a 15.0 per cent reduction in electricity
spot prices. Despite this, generation
volumes were similar to FY2015.
An increasing trend is the use of
gas in our Rankine Units as we take
advantage of lower wholesale gas
prices. This has seen our generation
gas costs reduced by four per cent.
The lower electricity spot prices and
lower wholesale gas prices have had an
impact on the sales price for our Time
Of Use customers with prices falling
year on year.
On 18 March 2016, the Company
raised $100.0 million through an issue
of fixed rate bonds in the domestic
bond market at an interest rate of 4.14
per cent per annum. The bonds, which
are quoted on the NZX Debt Market,
will mature on 18 March 2022. The
interest rate represents a significant
saving compared to the $105.0 million
issue of domestic bonds that matured
on 15 March 2016 at an interest rate
of 7.65 per cent.

OTHER

FY16
EBITDAF

Net debt for FY2016 has reduced
$71.7 million to $833.6 million after
adjusting for the impact of foreign
currency translation and fair value
movements related to the United States
Private Placement. The gearing ratio
(debt to debt plus equity) at the end of
FY2016 is 31.4 per cent compared to
34.4 per cent at the end of FY2015.
Net borrowing costs for FY2016
were $63.2 million, $3.5 million lower
compared to FY2015 at $66.7 million,
reflecting lower interest rates and
less debt.
Genesis Energy declared a final
dividend of 8.2 cents per share (cps)
for FY2016 after the balance sheet
date. This takes the total dividends
declared for FY2016 to 16.4 cps,
coupled with the interim dividend of
8.2 cps which equates to 81.9 per
cent of Free Cash Flow in FY2016.
This is 2.5 per cent ahead of the
dividends declared in FY2015 which
is significantly more than inflation of
0.4 per cent over the same period.

CHRIS JEWELL
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Integrated fuel strategy –
the role of Kupe
RETAIL
GAS SALES

Kupe Production
JV SHARE

7.3PJ

GE SHARE

Taranaki
Gas Fields

INTEGRATED FUEL STRATEGY – THE ROLE OF KUPE

GA S

69%
This portion of
gas is purchased
by Genesis Energy

ENERGY
FOR CUSTOMERS

WHOLESALE
GAS SALES

15.3PJ
RETAIL
ELECTRICITY SALES

Other
take-or-pay
gas contracts

31%
24PJ

Gas-fuelled
electricity
generation
3,232GWh

L PG

5,669GWh
WHOLESALE
ELECTRICITY SALES

1,600GWh

LPG

RETAIL
LPG SALES

69%

31%

OIL

69%
86%

EXPORT
LPG SALES

WHOLESALE
LPG SALES

9kt

15kt
OFFSHORE
OIL SALES

31%

of Kupe oil is exported

357kbbl
ONSHORE
OIL SALES

60kbbl

4kt

TOTAL SALES

LPG

28kt

Bulk sales

OIL

TOTAL SALES

417kbbl
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Focus on simplicity
and ease of service

646,000
Customer connections

ENGAGING WITH OUR CUSTOMERS

APP ACCESS

GAS VALUE PACKAGES

ENGAGING WITH OUR CUSTOMERS

Connecting more
with our customers
In a retail energy
market of heightened
competition, new
technologies, and digital
services, Genesis Energy
is engaging more and
more with our customers,
as they demand greater
simplicity, control and
value for money.

Today, the digitally connected
customer requires service and
engagement around the clock, not
traditional business hours — customer
service when and where the customer
wants it. Genesis Energy has
responded by providing digital channels
that enable our customers to engage
with us, pay their bills, move their
account when moving home, or order
an LPG bottle when they want it.
Genesis Energy has around 646,000
customer accounts (connections) and
is New Zealand’s largest electricity
and gas retailer with 26 per cent and
39 per cent market shares respectively.
The Company continues to focus on
delivering great experiences to our
customers by providing multi-product
offerings and efficient service through
our two brands, Genesis Energy and
Energy Online.
The Company’s Customer Experience
business activities operate within
a competitive and innovative retail
environment coupled with low growth
in demand. Around 30 companies now

Genesis Energy has around
646,000 customer connections
and is New Zealand largest
electricity and gas retailer with
26 per cent and 39 per cent
market shares respectively.

offer an electricity or gas product to
New Zealanders.
Against this environment the
Company achieved a 1.5 per cent
growth in customer accounts during
the year. Most of this growth was
attributable to the Energy Online
brand, which continued to attract new
customers with creative online videos
backed up by a simplified sign-up
process and offerings.
Electricity and gas pricing is a material
issue for our customers. In March
2016 a price change for all electricity
customers included a modest increase
to recover operating costs and a pass
through of distribution charge increases.

Genesis Energy supports the
New Zealand Federation of Family
Budgeting Services (NZFFBS) as a
way of helping our customers who
sometimes find it difficult to pay
their bills. The NZFFBS sponsorship
pays for an 0508 Budgetline – an
advice helpline – and budgeting
advice resources.

During the year, the Company
launched a range of new product
offers designed to provide greater
value. The most significant of these
was a new way to price and sell
natural gas and LPG from Kupe.
With a view to the future, where
customers demand more simplicity
and ease of service, Genesis Energy
launched Gas Value Packages in July
2015 and LPG plans in April 2016
as first-mover initiatives to test the
appetite for simplified offerings.
Under both plans, customers pay a
fixed amount each month for gas or
LPG. The LPG offer was supported
by an easy two-step process to
reorder using the Genesis Energy
app, which saw 21 per cent of
customers order LPG in this way.

The Genesis Energy and
Energy Online apps offer
useful functions for customers.
New functionality in a second
release of the app includes
improved online payment options,
usage at multiple properties and
enhanced LPG ordering options.

HOME MOVER ADVANTAGE

Spark and Genesis Energy streamlining
the home moving process
Genesis Energy extended our
partnership with Spark by offering
customers who are moving home the
ability to transfer their energy account
and home broadband at the same
time. Around 187,000 people
move each year and often change
their accounts during the move.
Spark and Genesis Energy streamlined
processes to deliver an easy and
efficient national service.

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE (RETAIL) PERFORMANCE
12 MONTHS TO 30 JUNE

FY2016

FY2015

523,174

516,574

1.3

107,121

106,263

0.8

630,295

622,837

1.2

15,890

13,839

14.8

646,185

636,676

1.5

377,495

364,129

3.7

20.2%

19.1%

5.8

Retail Electricity Sales (GWh)

5,669

5,414

4.7

Retail Electricity Purchases (GWh)

5,973

5,769

3.5

Retail Gas Sales (PJ)

7.3

7.1

2.8

Retail Gas Purchases (PJ)

7.4

7.0

5.7

Retail LPG Sales (tonnes)

3,990

3,523

13.3

Average Retail Electricity Purchase Price
($/MWh)3

63.87

74.67

(14.5)

LWAP/GWAP Ratio4

100%

99%

0.7

Customer Experience EBITDAF ($ million)

102.7

87.2

17.8

Electricity Customer Accounts
Gas Customer Accounts
Total Accounts excluding LPG

1

LPG Customers
Total Customer Accounts
Total Advanced Meters Installed
Average Customer Switching Rate

2

1 Based on Genesis Energy’s customer records, excluding
vacant accounts and defined by number of connections.
2 Based on the number of ICPs (or points of connection).

% CHANGE

3 Excludes settlements from electricity derivatives.
4 The ratio of average retail electricity purchase price
to average price received for generation.
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GENERATION OUTPUTS

Gas (GWh)
Coal (GWh)

7.7 GWh

Increase in hydro efficiency
compared to the previous
decade of operations.

6,721

PRODUCING

Harnessing energy
from the environment
Genesis Energy harnesses
natural resources in
the form of water and
wind, and fossil fuels
such as coal and gas
to generate electricity
for our wholesale and
retail customers.

The Company transforms the kinetic
energy of flowing water via turbines
and generators into electrical energy.
Genesis Energy has three hydroelectric power stations – the Tongariro
and Waikaremoana Power Schemes
in the North Island and the Tekapo
Power Scheme in the South Island.
A small wind farm at Hau Nui in
south Wairarapa connects to the
local electricity network.
At the Huntly Power Station, the
Company utilises coal and gas to
create steam to drive turbines in two
250MW Rankine Units. Natural gas
sourced from several Taranaki gas fields
including Kupe fuels two gas turbines
– a 403MW combined gas and steam
turbine and a 50MW gas turbine.
The dispatch of electricity from the
generating units is determined by
Genesis Energy’s customer demand,
wholesale electricity prices, rainfall and
inflows to lakes and rivers, fuel costs
and plant availability.

FY2015

% CHANGE

3,232

2,772

16.6

811

1,277

(36.5)

Total Thermal

4,043

4,049

(0.1)

Hydro

2,654

2,627

1.0

Wind

24

22

9.1

Total Renewable

2,678

2,649

1.1

Total Generation

6,721

6,698

0.3

North Island

5,801

5,633

3.0

South Island

921

1,065

(13.5)

$64.07

$75.41

(15.0)

Average Price Received for Generation
GWAP($/MWh)
GENERATION TREND (GWh) BY FUEL T YPE

4,000

Generation volume
in line with FY2015
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Renewable
Gas
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Despite a 7% reduction in hydro
inflows, hydro generation output
was up slightly as a result of
operational efficiencies.
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CARBON INTENSIT Y PROFILE OF GENESIS ENERGY’S GENERATION PORTFOLIO
TONNES CO2/GWh

The key determinants in the New
Zealand electricity market are hydro
storage – which can be volatile given
the relatively shallow hydro lakes – and
consumer demand.
At a national level, rainfall and
inflows into the country’s hydro lakes
tracked to the long-term average,
with high inflows in the South Island
towards the end of the financial year.
Genesis Energy’s hydro assets had
reduced inflows in the North Island
during the second half of the year
but the efficient use of the resource
resulted in a slight uplift in output
across the three schemes.
The Renewable Energy team
worked closely with Trading and
Portfolio Management to improve
hydro efficiency through better data
and operational alignment. As a
result an additional 7.7 GWh of
output was achieved compared to
the previous decade of operations.

Through competitive pricing,
gas was used as fuel for the
Rankine Units 32% of the time,
which was significantly higher
than in FY2015 (9%).
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TEKAPO AGREEMENTS

Continuing the legacy
Genesis Energy acquired the Tekapo Power Scheme in June 2011. The Company
has continued legacy mitigation agreements such as providing 22 recreational
water releases per annum on the Tekapo River for kayakers. In FY2016 upgrades
to the Tekapo Slalom Course and river weir were implemented.
An agreement with the local Community Board to help fund a new footbridge
over the Tekapo River came to a conclusion with the November 2015 opening of
the 125-metre bridge.

VOLUNTEER PROGRAMME

Caring for
the community
The Genesis Energy volunteer
programme gives our people one day
every year to support a community
organisation during business hours.
Working in teams we are able to
complete wide-ranging tasks and
exercise the power of volunteering to
improve communities.

PROTECTING

PROTECTING

Supporting community
and environmental initiatives
Most of Genesis Energy’s
investments in community
and environmental
projects or sponsorships
are closely linked to our
generation activities.

For many years, Genesis Energy has
demonstrated a tangible commitment
to our generation communities and
neighbouring environments. The
Company partners with organisations that
are making a positive difference to social
well-being or biodiversity in the areas in
which we operate. Examples include the
Graeme Dingle Foundation programmes
in the Waikato, the Hillary Outdoors
Pursuits Centre, and the Department of
Conservation’s Whio Forever recovery
programme. The relationship between
Genesis Energy and the Department
of Conservation is extremely important
to both parties and was re-signed for a
further five years in April 2016.
The Company recognises our impact
on the natural environment and the
native species that inhabits the waterways
from which we extract water. Whio, in
particular, as a native duck that only lives
on fast-flowing water, is an indicator
species. Whio populations are secure on
rivers that are managed well by hydro
generators and protected from imported
predators such as ferrets and rats.

During December 2015, an event
marked the fifth anniversary of the
Huntly Relationship Agreement. The
Agreement – Ngā Maramara o Rāhui
Pōkeka – is between Genesis Energy,
the Waahi Whaanui Trust and six marae
around the Huntly Power Station:
Taupiri, Waahi, Te Kauri, Kaitumutumu,
Te Ohaaki and Matahuri. The parties
have committed to work together in
good faith on five broad objectives:
relationship, marae development,
cultural education, training and
environmental enhancement.

CURTAIN BANK

Curtains get mobile
During the year, Genesis Energy
re-signed funding agreements
with Vision West (Auckland) the
Sustainability Trust (Wellington) and
the Community Energy Action Trust
(Christchurch) to support them in
running their Curtain Bank programmes.
Funding throughout the past year has
enabled all of these organisations to
grow their outreach via mobile curtain
banks, ensuring people who would
otherwise have limited access can
utilise the Curtain Bank services.

NUMBER OF
FAMILIES SUPPORTED
BY CURTAIN BANK

776

483

152

Wellington
Sustainability Trust

Christchurch
Community Energy Action

Auckland
Vision West

ELVER TRANSFER

WEED DATA

Protecting our threatened species

Drone-created maps

Active eel management is a resource consent requirement for Genesis Energy
at the Waikaremoana Hydro Scheme. This requires the transfer, each year, of
young eels (elvers) safely through the scheme. During the summer transfer
season in FY2016, more than 120,000 elvers were transferred – 50,000
more than the previous transfer record two years earlier. Around 18 per cent of
the elvers were Longfin eels – classified as a threatened species.

The annual autumnal aquatic weed
growth on Lake Rotoaira, which
can disrupt generation at Tokaanu
Power Station, was high this year.
In a new initiative, Genesis Energy
commissioned a drone to map the
lake’s weed beds ahead of weed
harvesting. GPS data from the
harvester was combined with the
drone-created maps to assess the
effectiveness of the harvesting and
improve long-term weed monitoring.

120,000+
Elvers safely transferred
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WORKFORCE BY EMPLOYMENT T YPE

GENDER DIVERSIT Y
BOARD, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 30 June 2016

93

100
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13
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60

%

Male

40
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0

5

6

Board

Executive Officers
(direct reports)

Permanent Full-time Employees
Permanent Part-time Employees
Fixed-term Contract Employees

150
120

Hours worked injury free
INCLUSIVE WORKING ENVIRONMENT

HEALTH AND SAFETY/DIVERSITY

HEALTH AND SAFET Y/DIVERSIT Y

Caring for our people
At Genesis Energy,
workplace health and
safety is our highest
priority and a continuing
focus for all our people.

Our goal to create a ‘zeroharm’ workplace environment is
uncompromising and reflects a
commitment to ensuring zero injuries
to all employees, contractors and
the public. We also understand that
achieving excellence in health, safety
and well-being is integral to success
in other areas of our business, such as
quality, productivity and profitability.
Through the development of a
proactive health and safety culture
and by increasing awareness of risk,
our total recordable injury frequency
rate (injuries per million hours worked)
is 2.56. This key measure is among
the lowest of all similar companies in
the energy, utility and mining sectors
in Australia and New Zealand.
Genesis Energy’s generation unit
made a strong contribution to our
health and safety performance by
working 667,000 hours injury free.
This was possible through a relentless
focus on job safety analysis,
safety observations and proactive
management of risk and process safety.

Genesis Energy’s generation unit
made a strong contribution to our
health and safety performance.

We believe that health and safety
in the wider industry is a shared
responsibility and synergies are
achieved by working together and
developing best practice.

Genesis Energy is a founding member
of StayLive, a collaborative electricity
industry health and safety initiative.
Working with our StayLive partners,
we share information and data openly
to create common frameworks,
processes and standards and to
improve overall industry safety
performance. The StayLive initiative
has been nominated as a finalist entry
in two industry awards.

Senior Management

GENDER DIVERSIT Y
AGE AND GENDER PROFILES OF WORKFORCE

Strength in diversity
Genesis Energy draws strength from
the diversity of its workforce, one that
mirrors our customer base and New
Zealand. We have offices and power
stations throughout the country and
are committed to maintaining inclusive
working environments where all our
people are respected and treated fairly.
With employees coming from different
cultures, age groups, genders and
beliefs, we benefit from a wealth
of diverse ideas, experiences and
perspectives. Through our own
people we can achieve a better
understanding of our customers and
are advantageously positioned to
deliver customer-focused products
and services.
Genesis Energy also places high
value on diversity of thought, which
can lead to new efficiencies and
greater innovation for our business
and stakeholders.

Number of employees

667,000

40

New Permanent
Employee Recruits
(in reporting period)

90
60

Total Permanent
Employees
(less new recruits)

30

Departed Permanent
Employees

0
-30

M
F
Under 25

M
F
25–34

M
F
35–44

M
F
45–54

M
F
55–64

M
F
65+

WORKFORCE EMPLOYMENT T YPE BY GENDER

100%
80%

424

416

373

43

8
Female

60%

Male

40%
20%
0%

444

435

Total Workforce
Total
(Permanent Permanent
& Fixed-Term Employees
Employees)

431

4

9

Permanent
Full-Time
Employees

Permanent
Part-Time
Employees

Fixed-Term
Contract
Employees

TOTAL INJURIES

Workforce Injury Rate1
(Injuries / 100 employees)
Percentage of Absent Days
(Absentee days / total days worked)

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

14.27

8.28

4.92

4.86

2.83

4.50% 4.53%

3.57%

2.47%

3.72%

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate
(LTIFR) (Lost time injuries
x 200,000/actual hours worked)

0.73

0.24

0.20

0.36

0.13

Total Recordable Injury Frequency Rate
(TRIFR) ((Lost time injuries + Restricted
work injuries + Medically treated injuries)
x 200,000/actual hours worked)

1.46

0.47

0.39

0.49

0.51

1 The data reported includes all minor self-treatment first-aid injuries.
Note: ‘Workforce’ is defined as permanent and fixed-term employees. Employees as at 30 June.
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SKY TOWER CHALLENGE

INTERNSHIPS

Tomorrow’s
leaders today
Genesis Energy formally implemented an internship programme during summer
2015/2016. Ten interns were recruited through the University of Auckland and
given the opportunity of three months’ ‘real world’ experience in our Greenlane
and Hamilton offices. We benefited from their enthusiasm and fresh ideas as they
worked in various departments and across a range of forward-thinking projects
such as mobile apps, solar promotions and paper footprint reduction.
At Huntly Power Station four young men from the local community began 12
month fixed term internships. These internships are supported by Ngā Maramara
o Rāhui Pōkeka and the Waikato Institute of Technology. During the year the
interns will develop a broad range of valuable skills with teams based at the station
including electrical, mechanical, maintenance and facilities.

Lucy McSweeney,
one of ten interns
who participated in the
three-month programme

Huntly Power Station’s
emergency response unit
claimed third place in the team
event of the 2016 Firefighter
Sky Tower Challenge.
The 16-strong team ascended
51 flights of stairs wearing
full gear to raise more than
$18,000 for Leukaemia &
Blood Cancer New Zealand.

HEALTH AND SAFETY/DIVERSITY

WOMEN’S

NETWORK

DIVERSIT Y

Empowering all our people

MAORI L ANGUAGE WEEK

Te Wiki o
Te Reo Māori

Diversity is a key focus of our people strategy and we consistently promote
tolerance and inclusion within our organisation, and the industry, through a range
of initiatives. In 2015, we consolidated our partnership with Global Women and
our engagement with its Champions of Change and Māori and Pasifika Corporate
Pathways programmes. We also launched our Internal Women’s Network to
develop a networking programme that will benefit all women in the Company.
Through the network Genesis Energy women can connect, learn and grow from
each other in ways that strengthen their personal career growth and delivery for
our business. The structure of the Women’s network will now be used as a model
for other employee groups.

As a New Zealand company, we
take pride and interest in the culture
of the land on which we operate.
Māori language is important to us
and we celebrated Te Wiki o Te Reo
Māori by offering a rich selection
of employee activities in our offices
and power stations.
Our people were given the opportunity
to attend kapa haka performances,
educational sessions on our iwi
relationships, haka training, and
demonstrations of rāranga (flax
weaving) and tā moko (tattoo). Daily
words and phrases were distributed,
and pronunciation classes and
language resources were made
available so all staff could improve their
comprehension and use of te reo.

FAREWELL AND THANK YOU!

Our longest-serving employee,
Andy Hema, retired after 51
years on the job. Andy began
as an 18-year-old electrical
apprentice and worked on the
construction of different power
stations before completing his
career at our Tokaanu station.

51

Number of years
worked by Andy Hema
at Genesis Energy
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Our key
stakeholder
relationships
Genesis Energy’s many diverse
stakeholders are key to the successful
provision of energy solutions to grow
the prosperity of our customers.

OUR KEY STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

It is crucial that we engage with our
stakeholders in an effective dialogue
and develop relationships built on
mutual respect and a desire to find
balanced and positive outcomes.
We identify our stakeholders as
any group that has an interest in
Genesis Energy and our operations.
We operate an open-door policy and
do not seek to exclude any stakeholder
groups. The topics of interest and
mechanisms we use to engage with
our stakeholders are identified in the
following table.

GROUP
CUSTOMERS

EMPLOYEES

SUPPLIERS

OUR
REL ATIONSHIP

STAKEHOLDER
TOPICS

• Provide quality products
and services at good value

• Access to energy

• Online availability

• Long-term and meaningful engagement

• Pricing

• Community support

• Great service

INVESTORS

• Surveys/Market research
• Mass-market and
targeted advertising
• Formal meetings

• Job security

• Remuneration

• Face-to-face

• Training programmes

• Training and development

• Intranet

• Induction

• Commitment to attract and recruit
talent to the Company

• Health
and safety
• Job satisfaction
and purpose

• Newsletters and publications

• Employee survey

• Contract management
process and reviews

• Reliable delivery of good products
and services

• Access to markets

• Occupational safety

• Meet responsible and sustainable
procurement policy

• Quality of products

• Fair tendering process

• Dialogue through account
management relationships

• Appropriate payment
conditions

• Regular engagement with
on-site management

• Ethical business practices

• Majority shareholder

• Market policy

• Access to water

• Direct dialogue

• Provide regulatory framework for fair
and competitive trading conditions

• Access to energy

• Climate change and
energy policy

• Generates economic growth via tax
revenues, services and infrastructure

• New energy technology

• Environmental policy

• Participation in industry
forums, conferences and
working groups

• Enhanced financial
returns

• Sound strategy

• Market disclosures

• Reports

• Corporate governance

• Skilled management

• Conference calls

• Media releases

• Transparent disclosure

• Site visits

• Website

• Annual Shareholder Meeting

• Investor App

• Improve our shareholder returns
• Boost financial performance
• Investment into growth

• Security of supply

• Business performance
• Health and safety

LENDERS

• Through online, phone,
mail, social media –
supporting a positive
customer experience

• Central to the success of the
business by being productive, innovative
and skilful

• Provide fair access to business
opportunities

GOVERNMENT
AND REGUL ATORS

HOW
WE ENGAGE

• Financial support capital for growth

• Policy submissions

• Business performance

• Market disclosures

• Transparent disclosure

• Face-to-face

• Skilled management

LOCAL COMMUNITIES
AND IWI

• Socially and environmentally responsible
• Good neighbour
• Respect role of tangata whenua
as kaitiaki (guardians) within their rohe

• Community engagement
and communication
process and plans

• Social investment and
responsibility

• Compliance with consent
conditions

• Memorandums
of Understanding

• Environmental controls

• Job opportunities

• Direct

• Easements

• Generation activities impacting
the values of tangata whenua

• Consultative groups

• Access to resources

• Providing economic benefit to
local communities

MEDIA

BUSINESS ORGANISATIONS

NON-GOVERNMENTAL
ORGANISATIONS

• Funding for social,
educational and
environmental programmes

• Comments on industry trends

• Industry challenges

• Market statistics and trends

• Press releases

• Website

• Influences the Company’s reputation

• Access to energy

• Media conferences

• Site visits

• Raise awareness of Company products
and services

• Energy use and
efficiency

• Climate change and
energy policy

• Media calls

• Social media

• Support policy developments that favour
trading conditions

• Long-term business risks
and opportunities

• Climate change

• Direct dialogue

• Add to the understanding and promotion
of responsible business practices

• Health and safety

• Economic settings

• Membership and
participation in business
and industry forums

• Provide an insight into the needs
of society and the environment

• Climate change

• Direct dialogue

• Publications

• Partnerships and community
investment

• Social media

• Monitor our performance in meeting the
needs of stakeholders, vulnerable groups
and the environment

• Access to resources

• Social and environmental
responsibility

• Energy innovation

• Skilled workforce

• Access to fairly
priced energy
• Vulnerable customers

• Formal meetings

• Sponsorship

• Resource consent
agreements
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The Board of Directors
All Directors are independent and non-executive
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD – JOANNA PERRY MNZM, MA ECON (CANTAB), FCA

Appointed 1 May 2007

Dame Jenny Shipley has been Chairman of Genesis Energy since November 2009.
She is Chairman of the Company’s Nominations Committee and is also a member
of the Company’s Human Resources and Remuneration Committee.
Dame Jenny is chairman of Seniors Money International Limited, Oravida Waters Limited,
Oravida NZ Limited and China Construction Bank (New Zealand). She is also an executive
board member of the New Zealand China Council and a trustee of the Heart Health
Research Trust.
Dame Jenny was Prime Minister of New Zealand from 1997 to 1999 and, in the preceding
seven years, she was a Minister in the New Zealand Government and responsible for various
portfolios including Minister for State Owned Enterprises. In both roles, she was involved in
the split of the Electricity Corporation of New Zealand (ECNZ) and the sell-down of the
shares in Contact Energy Limited. Dame Jenny resides in Auckland, New Zealand.

Joanna Perry joined the Genesis Energy Board in May 2007 and was appointed Deputy
Chairman in May 2009. She is Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee and a member
of the Nominations Committee.
Joanna is a professional director whose board appointments include Trade Me Group
Limited, Partners Life Limited, Kiwi Property Group Limited, Rowing New Zealand
and Sport New Zealand. Joanna is also chairman of the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) Advisory Council.
She was previously a partner in the international accountancy and consultancy firm KPMG,
chairman of the New Zealand Financial Reporting Standards Board and a member of the
Securities Commission.
Joanna resides in Auckland, New Zealand.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD – RT HON DAME JENNY SHIPLEY DNZM

Appointed 1 November 2009

MAURY LEYLAND BE (HONS)

Appointed 1 August 2016
Maury Leyland joined the Genesis Energy
Board in August 2016. She has broad
experience in senior management roles and
directorships with large corporate organisations.

Maury worked at Fonterra from 2005 until
2016, most recently as a member of the
executive team in the role of Managing
Director for People, Culture and Strategy.
She has also held leadership roles in risk
and crisis management, supply chain
management and for the listing of the
Fonterra Shareholders’ Fund.
Maury has been a director of Spark New
Zealand and Transpower New Zealand. She
is a Fellow of the Institution of Professional
Engineers of New Zealand and a Chartered
Member of the Institute of Directors.
Earlier in her career, Maury worked as a
consultant with The Boston Consulting
Group where she provided strategic and
operational advice across many industries.
She was with Team New Zealand as a
member of the design team during the
successful 1995 campaign.
Maury resides in Auckland, New Zealand.

JOHN LEUCHARS ME, BCA, FIPENZ

Appointed 16 July 2012

John Leuchars joined the Genesis Energy
Board in July 2012 and is a member of the
Company’s Audit and Risk Committee.
He is a professional company director.
John was a consulting engineer who held
director and managing director positions
in international consulting engineering
companies for 30 years. These included
managing director of Connell Wagner
(NZ) Limited (now Aurecon) and of
Connell Mott MacDonald, London. He has
experience in a broad range of industries,
including the design of power generation
projects in a hands-on design role and
at a governance level. John is currently
a director of KiwiRail Holdings Limited,
Wellington Gateway General Partner
companies (Transmission Gully Motorway)
and Milmeq Limited.
John resides in both Melbourne, Australia
and Auckland, New Zealand.
JOHN DELL BCOM (HONS), CA

Appointed 1 May 2010
Resigned 29 July 2016

GRAEME MILNE

ONZM, BTECH (BIOTECH) (HONS)

Appointed 1 May 2009

Graeme Milne was appointed to the
Genesis Energy Board in May 2009 and is
a member of the Company’s Nominations
Committee. He is a professional director
and is the chairman of a number of New
Zealand-based entities, including Synlait
Milk Limited, Johne’s Disease Research
Limited, TerraCare Fertilisers Limited,
Rimanui Farms Limited, Pacific T and R
Holdings Limited and Pro-Form Limited
Advisory Board, and holds directorships in
Alliance Group Limited, Farmers Mutual
Group Insurance and Elviti Holdings
Limited. Graeme is also a member of the
Massey University School of Engineering
Advanced Technology Advisory Board.
He was a director of the NZX-listed
distribution company Horizon Energy
Distribution Limited for seven years prior
to joining the Board of Genesis Energy.
Graeme resides near Cambridge,
New Zealand.

RUKUMOANA SCHAAFHAUSEN LLB

MARK CROSS BBS, CA

Appointed 1 May 2010

Appointed 24 June 2014

(HARVARD)

DOUGLAS MCKAY ONZM, BA, AMP

Rukumoana Schaafhausen was appointed
to the Genesis Energy Board in May
2010 and is a member of the Company’s
Audit and Risk Committee. She serves as
a director of Regional Facilities Auckland
Limited and Te Waharoa Investments
Limited and is an executive member
of Waikato-Tainui Te Kauhanganui
Incorporated (the Trustee of the Waikato
Raupatu Lands Trust and Waikato Raupatu
River Trust).
Rukumoana is the deputy chair of
Waikato-Tainui Te Arataura and chairs Te
Kauhanganui Incorporated’s Group Audit
and Risk Committee. She has practised as
a lawyer for a number of years in the areas
of governance and property and previously
worked as group counsel for a largescale property development company.
Rukumoana is of Waikato-Tainui descent.
Rukumoana resides in Auckland,
New Zealand.

Mark Cross joined the Genesis Energy
Board in June 2014 and is a member of the
Company’s Audit and Risk Committee. He has
extensive financial markets experience, both
as a professional director and consultant, and
during his earlier investment banking career.
Mark is currently chairman of Milford Asset
Management Limited, MFL Mutual Fund
Limited and Superannuation Investments
Limited, and a director of Z Energy,
Argosy Property Limited, Triathlon New
Zealand Incorporated and of other private
companies in which he is an investor. In his
investment banking career, Mark provided
corporate finance advice to companies and
governments and he has had significant
experience advising companies in the utilities
sector in Australia, United Kingdom and
Europe, across generation, distribution and
retail activities in electricity, water and gas.
Mark held senior positions at Deutsche Bank
in London, and prior to that in Australia
and at Lloyds Corporate Finance/Southpac
Corporation in Australia and New Zealand.
Mark resides in Auckland, New Zealand.

Doug McKay joined the Genesis Energy
Board in June 2014 and is Chairman of
the Company’s Human Resources and
Remuneration Committee. He is an
experienced commercial executive and is a
director across a range of industries.
Doug is chairman of the Bank of New
Zealand and Eden Park Trust Board and
has directorships with National Australia
Bank (NAB), IAG and Ryman Healthcare.
He is a director and shareholder of Tourism
Transport Limited. Doug began his career
with Procter & Gamble, working in a
number of roles both in New Zealand and
overseas and subsequently worked in
managing director and chief executive roles
with Lion Nathan, Carter Holt Harvey,
Goodman Fielder, Sealord and Independent
Liquor where he was also chairman. Doug
was the inaugural chief executive of the
amalgamated Auckland Council until the
end of 2013.
Doug resides in Auckland, New Zealand.

Appointed 24 June 2014

THE EXECUTIVE TEAM

GENESIS ENERGY Annual Report 2016

28

The Executive Team
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
– MARC ENGLAND MBA, MENG (HONS)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
– CHRIS JEWELL BE (HONS), MEM, CIMA

Marc England is responsible for the leadership, strategic direction and management
of all of Genesis Energy’s business interests. Appointed in 2016, Marc has a wealth
of general management experience underpinned by strong finance, strategy, marketing
and procurement experience with leading blue-chip companies in the industrial sector.
Marc has strong international experience in large business leadership roles in energy
businesses in the United Kingdom and globally. He has a track record of driving growth,
innovation and renewed customer focus in each of his previous positions. In his most recent
role before joining Genesis Energy, Marc was the key driver behind a new strategic agenda
at Sydney-based AGL Energy and the development of its New Energy business.
Marc has also held roles at British Gas and the Ford Motor Company.

As Chief Financial Officer, Chris is responsible for directing all financial, treasury, tax,
risk and procurement aspects of Genesis Energy. He was appointed in 2016 and brings
significant national and international experience and expertise to the Company.
Chris has broad experience in commercial management, energy trading, infrastructure
investment, and asset operations. He joined Genesis Energy in February 2013 after
almost a decade with Mighty River Power in a variety of management roles. Chris has
also worked in a variety of telecommunications and infrastructure roles in New Zealand
and the United Kingdom.

EXECUTIVE GENERAL MANAGER CORPORATE AFFAIRS AND TRANSFORMATION
– DEAN SCHMIDT BA (HONS)

EXECUTIVE GENERAL MANAGER TECHNOLOGY AND DIGITAL
– JENNIFER CHERRINGTON-MOWAT BCOM, MBA

As General Manager Corporate Affairs and Transformation, Dean Schmidt leads the
Transformation Office, which is responsible for ensuring the Company’s strategic initiatives
are being implemented and delivered. Dean also leads corporate communications, legal,
government and regulatory affairs, and community investment programmes. Having
joined Genesis Energy in August 2012, Dean brings political, private sector and Stateowned Enterprise experience to the Company. He served as Head of Corporate Affairs at
Television New Zealand, Group Corporate Affairs Manager for New Zealand Post Group
and Head of Government and Community Relations at Telecom NZ Ltd.

Jen Cherrington-Mowat, a New Zealander, joins Genesis Energy in October 2016 after
holding several senior leadership roles in the United Kingdom. This is a new role within the
leadership team. Jen will be responsible for helping deliver the digital services and tools
our customers need to streamline energy management in their homes or their businesses.
She brings almost 20 years of digital experience to Genesis Energy. Jen understands how
technology and mobility are reshaping services to the home and for business. Prior to
joining Genesis Energy, she held senior leadership roles at Mothercare, BT Group, eBay
UK, Amazon UK, Yahoo! Europe and most recently Electrocomponents PLC.

EXECUTIVE GENERAL MANAGER GENERATION AND WHOLESALE
– TRACEY HICKMAN MA (HONS)

EXECUTIVE GENERAL MANAGER PEOPLE AND CULTURE (ACTING)
– ANDREW STEELE BCOM

In this newly combined role Tracey Hickman covers two key areas of the business:
signalling greater integration and operating efficiency between generation and trading.
Her role includes asset management (including strategy, planning and plant performance),
engineering (including all projects), environmental management, health and safety of
generation teams, maintenance and operations. Tracey is also responsible for all aspects
of wholesale energy and fuel trading, sales to our larger customers and the Company’s
hedge portfolio. She has worked in the electricity sector in a variety of roles for more
than 20 years.

Andrew Steele currently leads the people and capability, health, safety and quality, internal
communications, and property and administration teams at Genesis Energy. Before joining
the Company, Andrew worked in a variety of executive roles across New Zealand and
Australia. He has worked in a range of companies including QSuper, Suncorp, Fonterra and
Telecom NZ Ltd. He also managed his own consulting business for three years building up a
set of blue-chip clients across Australia including those in the utility and electricity sectors.
Andrew leaves the business at the end of September 2016.

NEW EXECUTIVE ROLES

Two Executive General Manager roles were created in July in the restructure of the
Executive team. A recruitment process was under way at the time of publication for
an Executive General Manager Product Marketing and Executive General Manager
Customer Operations.
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Consolidated
Financial Statements

Consolidated comprehensive income statement
For the year ended 30 June 2016
Note

2015
$ million

1,676.7

1,730.4

242.4

282.9

53.8

64.7

Operating revenue
Electricity revenue
Gas revenue
Petroleum revenue
Other revenue

for the year ended
30 June 2016
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

2016
$ million

38.4

19.6

2,011.3

2,097.6

Electricity purchases, transmission and distribution

(910.9)

(953.7)

Gas purchases, transmission and distribution

(252.0)

(297.1)

4

Operating expenses

Petroleum production, marketing and distribution

Contents
Consolidated comprehensive
income statement
Consolidated statement of
changes in equity
Consolidated balance sheet
Consolidated cash flow statement
Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

Fuels consumed

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31
32
33
34
36

Note
1 General information
2 Basis of accounting
3 Segment reporting
4 Other revenue and operating expenses
5 Depreciation, depletion and amortisation
6 Change in fair value of financial instruments
7 Finance expense
8 Income tax
9 Earnings per share
10 Dividends
11 Share capital
12 Share-based payments
13 Receivables and prepayments
14 Inventories
15 Property, plant and equipment
16 Oil and gas assets
17 Intangible assets
18 Investments in subsidiaries
19 Joint operations
20 Related-party transactions
21 Payables and accruals
22 Borrowings
23 Provisions
24 Derivatives
25 Financial instruments and financial risk management
26 Fair value
27 Commitments
28 Contingent assets and liabilities
29 Events occurring after balance date

36
36
38
40
40
40
41
41
42
43
43
43
44
44
45
47
49
50
50
50
51
51
53
54
57
61
64
65
65

(23.0)

(26.1)

(196.3)

(187.4)

Employee benefits

4

(81.8)

(80.6)

Other operating expenses

4

(212.0)

(207.9)

(1,676.0)

(1,752.8)

335.3

344.8

Earnings before net finance expense, income tax, depreciation, depletion, amortisation,
impairment, fair value changes and other gains and losses
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

5

(127.5)

(155.7)

Impairment of non-current assets

15

–

(14.0)

Revaluation of generation assets

15

138.0

–

Change in fair value of financial instruments

6

(26.6)

32.1

(3.0)

(0.2)

(19.1)

(137.8)

316.2

207.0

Other gains (losses)
Profit before net finance expense and income tax
Finance revenue
Finance expense

2.0

1.3

7

(65.2)

(68.0)

253.0

140.3

8

(68.8)

(35.5)

184.2

104.8

Profit before income tax
Income tax (expense)
Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in cash flow hedge reserve

24

(33.6)

(20.1)

Income tax credit (expense) relating to items that may be reclassified

8

9.4

5.6

(24.2)

(14.5)

Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in asset revaluation reserve

15

232.6

–

Income tax (expense) relating to items that will not be reclassified

8

(65.1)

–

Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

167.5

–

Total other comprehensive income (expense) for the year

143.3

(14.5)

Total comprehensive income for the year

327.5

90.3

18.43

10.49

Earnings per share from operations attributable to shareholders of the Parent
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents)

9

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2016
Note
Balance as at 1 July 2014
Net profit for the year

Share
capital
$ million

Consolidated balance sheet
Share-based
Asset
payments revaluation
Cash flow
reserve
reserve hedge reserve
$ million
$ million
$ million

As at 30 June 2016
Retained
earnings
$ million

Total
$ million

539.7

–

805.8

(5.1)

540.3

1,880.7

–

–

–

–

104.8

104.8

Other comprehensive income

Cash and cash equivalents

34.9

21.0

13

188.8

187.7

Inventories

14

79.3

80.0

–

3.1

Assets held for sale

–

–

–

(20.1)

–

(20.1)

Income tax credit relating to other
comprehensive income

8

–

–

–

5.6

–

5.6

–

–

–

(14.5)

104.8

90.3

–

0.3

–

–

–

0.3

Total current assets
Non-current assets

12

Dividends

10

Balance as at 30 June 2015
Net profit for the year

–

–

–

–

(145.9)

(145.9)

539.7

0.3

805.8

(19.6)

499.2

1,825.4

–

–

–

–

184.2

184.2

Other comprehensive income
Change in cash flow hedge reserve

24

–

–

–

(33.6)

–

(33.6)

Change in asset revaluation reserve

15

–

–

232.6

–

–

232.6

Income tax (expense)/credit relating to other
comprehensive income

8

–

–

(65.1)

9.4

–

(55.7)

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year

–

–

167.5

(24.2)

184.2

327.5

Revaluation reserve reclassified to retained earnings
on disposal of assets

–

–

(0.4)

–

0.4

–

Share-based payments

12

–

0.2

–

–

–

0.2

Dividends

10

–

–

–

–

(161.9)

(161.9)

539.7

0.5

972.9

(43.8)

521.9

1,991.2

Balance as at 30 June 2016

2015
$ million

Receivables and prepayments

24

Share-based payments

2016
$ million

Current assets

Change in cash flow hedge reserve

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Note

Intangible assets

4.8

4.3

4.1

16.2

19.9

34.2

331.8

346.5

17

Tax receivable
Derivatives

24

Receivables and prepayments

13

4.2

0.9

Inventories

14

–

24.4

Property, plant and equipment

15

2,988.0

2,682.5

Oil and gas assets

16

267.5

292.4

Intangible assets

17

133.7

127.4

Derivatives

24

53.0

53.9

Total non-current assets

3,446.4

3,181.5

Total assets

3,778.2

3,528.0

21

166.8

158.3

Borrowings

22

136.2

117.8

Provisions

23

15.3

12.3

Derivatives

24

27.6

21.5

345.9

309.9

Current liabilities
Payables and accruals

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Payables and accruals

21

0.8

0.7

Borrowings

22

776.0

840.4

Provisions

23

123.2

123.7

Deferred tax liability

8

484.3

397.2

Derivatives

24

56.8

30.7

Total non-current liabilities

1,441.1

1,392.7

Total liabilities

1,787.0

1,702.6

Shareholders' equity
Share capital

11

Reserves

539.7

539.7

1,451.5

1,285.7

Total equity

1,991.2

1,825.4

Total equity and liabilities

3,778.2

3,528.0

The Directors of Genesis Energy Limited authorise these financial statements for issue on behalf of the Board.

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Rt Hon Dame Jenny Shipley, DNZM
Chairman of the Board

Joanna Perry, MNZM
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee

Date: 23 August 2016

Date: 23 August 2016

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
2016
$ million

2015
$ million

Reconciliation of net profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit for the year

Cash was provided from:

Items classified as investing/financing activities

Receipts from customers
Interest received
Tax received

2,009.2

2,122.0

2.0

1.3

20.9

–

2,032.1

2,123.3

1,578.7

1,687.6

Payments to suppliers and related parties
Payments to employees

82.6

Tax paid
Net cash inflows from operating activities

Note

2015
$ million

184.2

104.8

Net (gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(0.3)

2.5

Interest and other finance charges paid

59.1

61.8

58.8

64.3

Non-cash items
5

127.5

155.7

Revaluation of generation assets

15

(138.0)

–

81.0

Impairment of non-current assets

15

–

14.0

Change in fair value of financial instruments

6

26.6

(32.1)

Deferred tax expense

8

31.4

18.6

46.0

36.2

1,707.3

1,804.8

324.8

318.5

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in capital expenditure accruals
Change in rehabilitation and contractual arrangement provisions

Cash was provided from:

Other non-cash items

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

2016
$ million

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation expense

Cash was applied to:
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

For the year ended 30 June 2016

6.4

1.3

6.4

1.3

1.9

1.7

(0.3)

(0.8)

2.0

43.8

159.8

(4.4)

28.7

Change in inventories

25.1

23.5

Change in emission units on hand

(2.0)

(2.0)

Change in deferred customer acquisition costs

(3.9)

–

Movements in working capital
Change in receivables and prepayments

Cash was applied to:

(4.6)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

19.1

35.5

Purchase of oil and gas assets

8.8

4.1

Purchase of intangibles (excluding emission units and deferred customer acquisition costs)

10.6

10.3

38.5

49.9

Change in payables and accruals

8.6

(36.5)

Net cash (outflows) from investing activities

(32.1)

(48.6)

Change in tax receivable/payable

12.1

(19.6)

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in provisions

Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from borrowings

100.0

193.0

100.0

193.0

155.0

256.1

61.9

61.6

–

1.6

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash was applied to:
Repayment of borrowings
Interest paid and other finance charges
Repayment of principal on finance lease liabilities
Dividends
Net cash (outflows) from financing activities

161.9

145.9

378.8

465.2

(278.8)

(272.2)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

13.9

(2.3)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July

21.0

23.3

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

34.9

21.0

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2.5

(4.5)

38.0

(10.4)

324.8

318.5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

2. Basis of accounting (continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2016

1. General information
Genesis Energy Limited (the ‘Parent’) is a
company registered under the Companies
Act 1993. The Parent is majority owned by
Her Majesty the Queen in Right of New
Zealand (the ‘Crown’) and is listed on the
NZSX, NZDX and ASX. The Parent, as a
mixed ownership model company, is bound
by the requirements of the Public Finance
Act 1989. The liabilities of the Parent are not
guaranteed in any way by the Crown. The
Parent is an FMC Reporting Entity under
the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013
and the Financial Reporting Act 2013.
The consolidated financial statements
comprise the Parent, its subsidiaries and
the Group’s interests in joint operations
(together, the ‘Group’). The Group is
designated as a profit-oriented entity for
financial reporting purposes.
The Group’s core business is located in
New Zealand and involves the generation of
electricity, retailing and trading of energy,
and the development and procurement of
fuel sources. To support these functions, the
Group’s scope of business includes retailing and
trading of related complementary products
designed to support its key energy business.

2. Basis of accounting
Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with and comply with New
Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (‘NZ GAAP’), New Zealand
Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘NZ IFRS’) and other
applicable New Zealand Financial Reporting
Standards as appropriate for profit-oriented
entities. These financial statements comply
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (‘IFRS’).
The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Financial Markets
Conduct Act 2013, the Financial Reporting
Act 2013 and the Companies Act 1993,
and are presented in New Zealand dollars
rounded to the nearest one hundred
thousand. The accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below and in the relevant notes
to the financial statements. These policies
have been applied consistently to all years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical-cost convention,
modified by the revaluation of derivatives
and generation assets.

The financial statements are prepared on a
GST exclusive basis with the exception of
receivables and payables, which include GST
where GST has been invoiced.
Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all those entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Group.
Control is achieved when the Parent has
exposure or rights to variable returns and
has the power to affect those returns.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
control is acquired. They are de-consolidated
from the date control ceases. The acquisition
method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Joint operations
Where the Group invests in joint operations,
the Group’s share of revenue, expenditure,
assets and liabilities is included in the
appropriate categories within the Group
financial statements on a proportionate
line-by-line basis.
Transactions and balances eliminated
on consolidation
Intercompany transactions, balances,
revenue and expenditure between Group
companies are eliminated on consolidation.
Critical accounting estimates
and judgements
The preparation of financial statements
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
Significant areas of estimation in these
financial statements are as follows:
Valuation of generation assets
The Group’s generation assets are carried
at fair value. The fair value is based on the
present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the assets. The key assumptions
used in the valuation and the carrying value
of generation assets are disclosed in note 15.

Depletion of oil and gas producing assets
Depletion of oil and gas producing assets
is based on the proven reserves to which
the assets relate. Proven reserve estimates
can change over time. The proven reserve
estimates used to deplete oil and gas
producing assets and the carrying value of
the assets are disclosed in note 16.
Valuation of rehabilitation and
restoration provision
The financial statements include an estimate
of the liability in relation to the abandonment
and restoration of generation and oil and
gas production sites. Such estimates are
measured at the present value of the cash
flows estimated to settle the obligation. The
key assumptions used in the calculation and
the carrying value of the rehabilitation and
restoration provision are disclosed in note 23.
Valuation of electricity derivatives
The valuation of electricity derivatives
classified as level three financial instruments
is based on forecasted internally generated
electricity price paths which incorporate a
number of assumptions. The key assumptions
used in the valuation and the carrying value of
electricity derivatives classified as level three
financial instruments are disclosed in note 26.
Impairment of assets
Assets that have indefinite useful lives
are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to depletion, depreciation or
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
annually, or whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. If an asset’s
carrying value exceeds its recoverable
amount, the difference is recognised as
an impairment loss in profit or loss, except
where the asset is carried at a revalued
amount then it is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell, and
the asset’s value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value at a rate
that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money. This discount rate
is adjusted for the risks specific to the asset
where the estimated cash flows have not
been adjusted.
For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that have been
impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but only to the extent
the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase. Impairment
of goodwill is not reversed.

Capital and reserves

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in a foreign
currency are converted at the exchange rate
in effect at the date of the transaction. At
balance date monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the closing rate. Exchange gains
and losses arising from these translations and
the settlement of these items are recognised
in profit or loss, except when deferred in
equity where cash flow hedging is applied
(refer to the derivatives accounting policy
disclosed in note 24).

Share-based payments reserve
The share-based payments reserve is used to
recognise the value of equity-settled sharebased payments provided to employees,
including key management personnel, as part
of their remuneration.

Statement of cash flows
The following definitions are used in the
statement of cash flows:
Operating activities
Operating activities include all transactions
and other events that are not investing or
financing activities.
Investing activities
Investing activities are those activities
relating to the acquisition, holding and
disposal of property, plant and equipment, oil
and gas assets, intangible assets (excluding
emission units and deferred customer
acquisition costs) and investments.
Financing activities
Financing activities are those activities that
result in changes to the size and composition
of the capital structure of the Group. They
include both equity and debt not falling
within the definition of cash. Dividends
and interest paid in relation to the capital
structure are included in financing activities.
Payments to suppliers and related parties
disclosed in operating activities include the
net amount of GST paid/received during the
year. GST is disclosed on a net basis as the
gross amounts do not provide meaningful
information for financial statement purposes.

Asset revaluation reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to
record movements in the fair value of
generation assets in accordance with the
property, plant and equipment accounting
policy disclosed in note 15.
Cash flow hedge reserve
The cash flow hedge reserve comprises
the effective portion of the cumulative net
change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedge transactions
that have not yet occurred.

New accounting treatment
Genesis Energy has implemented new
accounting treatments during the year to
defer the recognition of incentives provided
to customers and the cost of acquisition of
customers. Due to the level of competition
in the retail energy market, Genesis Energy
increased its expenditure on acquisition
costs and incentives to customers to stabilise
and extract longer-term value from the
retail customer base. Customer incentives
such as account credits are included in the
measurement of revenue and are spread over
the length of the average customer tenure
where there is evidence that the return from
the customer over the amortisation period
is positive, in line with the future revenue
standard NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. Customer acquisition costs
which are directly attributable to securing a
particular customer contract, and meet the
definition of an intangible asset under NZ IAS
38 Intangible Assets, are now capitalised and
amortised over the average customer tenure.
The new accounting treatment resulted in
the recognition of a $7.0 million asset in
receivables and prepayments and a $3.9
million asset in intangibles at 30 June 2016
(refer to notes 13 and 17).
There have been no significant changes
in accounting policies or methods of
computation since 30 June 2015.

Adoption of new and revised accounting
standards, interpretations and amendments
There have been no new and revised
accounting standards, interpretations or
amendments effective during the year
which have a material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies or disclosures.
Accounting standards, interpretations and
amendments in issue not yet effective
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is effective
for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The standard
comprises three phases: phase one,
Classification and Measurement; phase two,
Impairment Methodology; and phase three,
Hedge Accounting. Phases one and two are
not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements. The impact
of phase three has not been determined.
NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. The impact this standard will have on
the Group’s financial statements has not
been determined.
NZ IFRS 16 Leases is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The new standard eliminates
the distinction between operating and
finance leases for lessees and will result
in lessees bringing most leases onto their
balance sheets. The impact this standard will
have on the Group’s financial statements has
not been determined.
All other standards, interpretations and
amendments approved but not yet
effective in the current year are either not
applicable to the Group or are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements and, therefore, have
not been discussed.
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3. Segment reporting

3. Segment reporting (continued)

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into four segments as follows:
Segment
Activity

Year ended 30 June 2015

Customer experience

Supply of energy (electricity, gas and LPG) and related services to end-user customers.

Energy management

Generation and trading of electricity and related products. The segment includes electricity sales to the wholesale
electricity market, derivatives entered into to fix the price of electricity, and wholesale gas and coal sales.

Oil and gas

Exploration, development, production and sale of gas, LPG and light oil.

Gas revenue

Corporate

Head office functions including new generation investigation and development, fuel management, information
systems, human resources, finance, corporate relations, property management, legal and corporate governance.
Corporate revenue is made up of property rental and miscellaneous income.

Other revenue

The segments are based on the different products and services offered by the Group. No operating segments have been aggregated.
Customer
Energy
Inter-segment
Year ended 30 June 2016
experience management Oil and gas Corporate
items
$ million
$ million
$ million
$ million
$ million

Gas revenue
Petroleum revenue
Other revenue

1,199.2

975.3

153.0

136.4

–

–

–

Corporate
$ million

Inter-segment
items
$ million

Total
$ million

Operating revenue
Electricity revenue
Petroleum revenue

1,180.3

1,037.9

–

–

(487.8)

1,730.4

149.1

188.3

59.3

–

(113.8)

282.9

–

–

64.7

–

–

64.7

9.0

9.1

0.4

1.1

–

19.6

1,338.4

1,235.3

124.4

1.1

(601.6)

2,097.6

Operating expenses
Total
$ million

Operating revenue
Electricity revenue

Customer
Energy
experience management Oil and gas
$ million
$ million
$ million

–

(497.8)

1,676.7

53.9

–

(100.9)

242.4

53.8

–

–

53.8

Electricity purchase, transmission and distribution

(978.6)

(462.9)

–

–

487.8

(953.7)

Gas purchase, transmission and distribution

(125.0)

(229.0)

–

–

56.9

(297.1)

Petroleum production, marketing and distribution

–

–

(26.1)

–

–

(26.1)

Fuel consumed

–

(244.3)

–

–

56.9

(187.4)

Employee benefits

(25.5)

(28.4)

–

(26.7)

–

(80.6)

Other operating expenses

(122.1)

(69.6)

(4.8)

(11.4)

–

(207.9)

Earnings before net finance expense, income tax,
depreciation, depletion, amortisation, impairment,
fair value changes and other gains and losses

87.2

201.1

93.5

(37.0)

–

344.8

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

10.2

26.9

–

1.3

–

38.4

1,362.4

1,138.6

107.7

1.3

(598.7)

2,011.3

(3.0)

(85.4)

(55.3)

(12.0)

–

(155.7)

Electricity purchase, transmission and distribution

(996.1)

(412.6)

–

–

497.8

(910.9)

–

(13.1)

–

(0.9)

–

(14.0)

Gas purchase, transmission and distribution

Impairment of non-current assets

(123.5)

(177.5)

–

–

49.0

(252.0)

Change in fair value of financial instruments

–

29.4

4.7

(2.0)

–

32.1

Petroleum production, marketing and distribution

–

–

(23.0)

–

–

(23.0)

–

(0.2)

1.1

(1.1)

–

(0.2)

Fuel consumed

Other gains (losses)

–

(248.2)

–

–

51.9

(196.3)

84.2

131.8

44.0

(53.0)

–

207.0

Employee benefits

(29.1)

(31.7)

(0.1)

(20.9)

–

(81.8)

–

0.2

1.0

–

1.3

Other operating expenses

Finance revenue

0.1

(111.0)

(74.5)

(4.2)

(22.3)

–

(212.0)

Finance expense

(0.3)

(3.3)

(2.9)

(61.5)

–

(68.0)

Earnings before net finance expense, income tax,
depreciation, depletion, amortisation, impairment,
fair value changes and other gains and losses

102.7

194.1

80.4

(41.9)

–

335.3

Profit (loss) before income tax

84.0

128.5

41.3

(113.5)

–

140.3

(3.1)

(81.8)

(30.7)

(11.9)

–

(127.5)

Capital expenditure

4.3

29.2

4.0

6.1

–

43.6

–

138.0

–

–

–

138.0

Inter-segment revenue
Sales between segments is based on transfer prices developed in the context of long-term contracts. Inter-segment gas revenue includes the
Group’s share of Kupe gas sales to Energy Management and gas on-sold from Energy Management to Customer Experience.

Operating expenses

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation
Revaluation of generation assets
Change in fair value of financial instruments

–

(18.0)

(3.3)

(5.3)

–

(26.6)

Other gains (losses)

(0.2)

(0.4)

(0.4)

(2.0)

–

(3.0)

Profit (loss) before net finance expense and income tax

99.4

231.9

46.0

(61.1)

–

316.2

Finance revenue

0.1

–

0.2

1.7

–

2.0

Finance expense

(0.3)

(3.1)

(3.0)

(58.8)

–

(65.2)

Profit (loss) before income tax

99.2

228.8

43.2

(118.2)

–

253.0

5.3

14.4

8.9

11.2

–

39.7

Other segment information
Capital expenditure

Profit (loss) before net finance expense and income tax

Other segment information

Geographic information
All business segments operate within New Zealand.
Major customer information
The Group has no individual customers that account for 10 per cent or more of the Group’s external revenue (2015: none).
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4. Other revenue and operating expenses

7. Finance expense
Note

2016
$ million

2015
$ million

Interest on borrowings (excluding capital bonds)

46.0

49.1

Interest on capital bonds

12.4

12.4

15.8

Total interest on borrowings

58.4

61.5

19.6

Other interest and finance charges

0.7

0.6

6.1

6.2

65.2

68.3

-

(0.3)

2016
$ million

2015
$ million

21.0

3.8

17.4
38.4

Other revenue includes:
Emission unit revenue from trading
Other revenue
Operating expenses include:

Note

Time value of money adjustments on provisions

23

Capitalised finance expenses

15
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Auditor's remuneration:
Audit of financial statements
– Review fees for interim financial statements (Deloitte)

0.1

0.1

– Audit fees for annual financial statements (Deloitte)

0.5

0.4

Directors' fees

0.8

0.8

Bad debts

8.2

7.2

Employee benefits expense – defined contributions

2.8

2.8

Rental expenses on operating leases

8.3

8.0

Onerous contracts
Reversal of inventory spares write-down

14

Emission unit expenses from trading
Other employee benefits and operating expenses
Employee benefits
Other operating expenses

2.0

(3.2)

(6.9)

(0.3)

15.5

2.9

262.5

269.8

293.8

288.5

81.8

80.6

212.0

207.9

293.8

288.5

Weighted average capitalisation rate

8. Income tax
2016
$ million

2015
$ million

– Current year

41.8

37.6

– Under (over) provided in prior periods

(2.1)

(1.1)

Current tax

– Powerhouse depreciation determinations
– Thermal
– Hydroelectric
– Tekapo Canal remediation project – settlement

5. Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

Deferred tax
2016
$ million

2015
$ million

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

15

85.4

88.6

Depreciation and depletion of oil and gas assets

16

30.7

55.3

Amortisation of intangibles (excluding amortisation of deferred customer acquisition costs)

17

11.4

11.8

127.5

155.7

6. Change in fair value of financial instruments
Note
Change in fair value of derivatives – gain (loss)
Fair value interest rate risk adjustment on borrowings – gain (loss)

24

2016
$ million

2015
$ million

(3.9)

33.3

(22.7)

(1.2)

(26.6)

32.1

The change in the fair value of derivatives for the year mainly relates to the movement in the fair value of Cross-Currency Interest Rate Swaps
(‘CCIRS’) ($22.0 million gain) offset by the movement in the fair value of electricity swaps and options ($17.7 million loss). The movement in the
fair value of the CCIRS relates to movements in interest and foreign exchange rates between 30 June 2015 and balance date. The movement
in the fair value of the CCIRS was offset by the change in the fair value interest rate risk adjustment on the United States Private Placement
(‘USPP’) ($23.2 million loss). The net impact on net profit of the CCIRS and USPP was $1.2 million loss. The movement in the fair value of
electricity swaps and options primarily reflects movements in the electricity price path between either the date the contract was entered into,
if it is a new contract in the current year, or 30 June 2015 and balance date.

68.0
6.4%

Interest on borrowings, bank and facility fees and transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest rate method, unless such costs relate to funding capital work in progress. Time value of money adjustments on provisions is
recognised in profit or loss up to the point the provision is used or released.
Finance expense on capital work in progress (qualifying assets) is capitalised during the construction period. The capitalisation rate used to
determine the amount of finance expense to be capitalised is based on the weighted average finance expenses incurred by the Group.

In addition to the services disclosed above, Deloitte completed the following work during the year: a fraud review and assisted with integrated
reporting and trustee reporting (2015: trustee reporting). Total fees relating to the other services was $0.036 million (2015: $0.035 million).

Note

65.2
6.2%

– Current year
– Under (over) provided in prior periods

(2.3)

–

–

(1.1)

–

(18.5)

28.6

2.5

5.4

0.3

– Powerhouse depreciation determinations
– Thermal
– Hydroelectric
– Tekapo Canal remediation project – settlement

(2.6)

–

–

(2.7)

–

18.5

Income tax expense

68.8

35.5

Current tax

37.4

16.9

Deferred tax

31.4

18.6

68.8

35.5

253.0

140.3

70.8

39.3

3.3

(0.8)

(4.9)

–

Reconciliation of income tax expense on pre–tax accounting profit to income tax expense
Profit before income tax
Income tax at 28%
Tax effect of adjustments:
– Under (over) provided in prior periods
– Powerhouse depreciation determinations
– Thermal
– Hydroelectric
– Non-deductible expenditure and other adjustments

–

(3.8)

(0.4)

0.8

68.8

35.5
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8. Income tax (continued)

10. Dividends

Income tax is recognised in profit or loss unless it relates to other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, together with any unpaid tax or adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Oil and gas
assets
$ million

356.5

80.5

(34.0)

(4.3)

17.5

(10.1)

(1.8)

0.8

12.2

18.6

–

–

–

–

(5.6)

(5.6)

374.0

70.4

(35.8)

(3.5)

(7.9)

397.2

Amount recognised in profit or loss

39.9

(4.1)

(0.2)

0.8

(5.0)

31.4

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

65.1

–

–

–

(9.4)

55.7

479.0

66.3

(36.0)

(2.7)

(22.3)

484.3

Deferred tax liability
Balance as at 1 July 2014
Amount recognised in profit or loss
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
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Imputation

Property, plant
and equipment
$ million

Balance as at 30 June 2015

Balance as at 30 June 2016

Provisions
$ million

Finance lease
liabilities
$ million

2016

Other
$ million
(14.5)

Total
$ million
384.2

Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period.
Powerhouse depreciation determinations
Tax depreciation deductions were disallowed for buildings with estimated useful lives of 50 years or more from 1 July 2011. As a result,
adjustments to deferred tax liabilities totalling $12.4 million were made in the 2010 and 2011 financial years relating to generation powerhouse
assets, offices and leasehold improvements.
On 25 March 2015, the Inland Revenue Department issued a Depreciation Determination for Hydroelectric Powerhouses which allows the
Group to claim an annual depreciation deduction of two per cent on hydroelectric powerhouses; this applied retrospectively from the 2012
income year. As a result, a $3.8 million adjustment was made to tax expense in the 2015 financial year, the majority of which related to reversing
the 2010 and 2011 adjustments made when the change in tax depreciation on buildings was substantively enacted.
On 23 February 2016, the Inland Revenue Department issued a Depreciation Determination for Geothermal and Thermal Powerhouses which
applied retrospectively from the 2012 income year. During 2016, agreement was reached with Inland Revenue on the apportionment of thermal
powerhouses as depreciable plant foundations. As a result, a $4.9 million adjustment has been made to tax expense in the current year, the majority
of which related to reversing the 2010 and 2011 adjustments made when the change in tax depreciation on buildings was substantively enacted.
Tekapo Canal Remediation Project
During 2015, a resolution was reached with Inland Revenue on the tax treatment of costs associated with the Tekapo Canal Remediation Project.
The impact of the resolution resulted in an increase in current tax receivable and deferred tax liability of $18.5 million as at 30 June 2015.

9. Earnings per share
2016

2015

184.2

104.8

1,000.0

1,000.0

Numerator
Net profit for the year attributable to shareholders ($ million)
Denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (million units)
Less weighted average number of Treasury shares (million units)

(0.5)

(0.5)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic and diluted earnings per share calculation (million units)

999.5

999.5

Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents)

18.43

10.49

2015

$ million

Cents
per share

80.0

8.00

Fully imputed
Fully imputed

Imputation

$ million

Cents
per share

66.0

6.60

Dividends paid during the year
Previous year's final dividend

Fully imputed

Current year's interim dividend

80 per cent

81.9

8.19

161.9

16.19

82.0

8.20

79.9

8.00

145.9

14.60

80.0

8.00

Dividends declared subsequent to balance date
Final dividend

80 per cent

Fully imputed

Imputation credits
There are no imputation credits available for use as at 30 June 2016 (2015: $0.1 million), as the imputation account has a debit balance as of
that date. The Parent will fund the deficiency in its imputation credit account as is required by 31 March 2017.

11. Share capital
Share capital of $539.7 million is made up of 1,000 million ordinary authorised, issued and fully paid shares ($540.6 million) offset by 0.5 million
($0.9 million) Treasury shares, giving a net share capital of 999.5 million shares ($539.7 million). There has been no change in share capital
during the year (2015: no change).

12. Share–based payments
Long–term incentive plan
During the 2014 financial year, the Group implemented a long-term incentive (LTI) plan for senior executives and a Trust was established to
administer the plan (refer to note 18). The Trust acquired shares in the Parent; these shares were recorded as Treasury shares in the Group (refer
to note 11). Under the plan, senior executives purchase shares at market value, funded by interest-free loans from the Parent. The shares are
held on trust by the Trustee of the LTI plan until the end of the vesting period. If the shares vest, each executive is entitled to a cash amount
which, after deduction for tax, is equal to the outstanding loan balance on day one for the shares which have vested. That cash amount must be
applied towards repayment of their loan balance and the corresponding shares are released by the Trustee back to the executive.
Vesting of shares is dependent on continued employment through the vesting period and on the Group achieving a positive total shareholder return
over the period and the Group’s performance relative to the benchmark peer group. If the Group’s total shareholder return performance over the
vesting period exceeds the 50th percentile total shareholder return of the benchmark peer group, 50 per cent of the shares will vest; 100 per cent
of an executive’s shares will vest upon meeting the performance of the 75th percentile of the benchmark peer group, with vesting on a straight-line
basis between these two points. In the event that the total shareholder return is negative over the period or is less than the 50th percentile of the
benchmark peer group or if the participant ceases to be employed by the Group other than for qualifying reasons, no shares will vest and the shares
will be forfeited to the Trustee without compensation, and the relevant executive will receive no benefits under the plan (unless the Board exercises its
discretion to allow some or all of the shares to vest). The benchmark peer group comprises a selected number of companies listed on the NZX 50.
The plan represents the grant of in-substance nil-price options to executives. The cost of the LTI is measured by reference to the fair value
at grant date. The fair value of the options granted under the plan are estimated as at the date each grant is approved by the Board using an
option pricing model that takes into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The estimated fair value of the
in-substance nil-price options at grant date was $0.6 million. In accordance with the rules of the plan, the model simulates the Group’s total
shareholder return and compares it against the peer group over the vesting period.
The cost of the LTI is recognised, together with a corresponding increase to the share-based payments reserve within equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The total amount to be expensed is based on the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest taking into consideration the likelihood that service conditions will be met multiplied by the initial fair value of each option.
During the year, the Group granted 311,025 in-substance nil-price options to senior executives (2015: 30,812), and 322,790 were forfeited
due to performance targets not being met (2015: none). The net expense for the year was negative $0.005 million (2015: $0.150 million).
Employee Share Scheme
During the 2015 financial year, the Group implemented an Employee Share Scheme (‘ESS’). The ESS allows Genesis Energy employees to
purchase Genesis Energy shares and, subject to certain conditions, receive award shares at no additional cost. Each year, each eligible employee
can choose an annual amount (from a minimum of $250 to a maximum of $5,000) they wish to invest from their after-tax pay. The annual
amount is divided by the number of after-tax payments an employee will receive in the year and is then deducted from their monthly/fortnightly
pay. The deduction is used to purchase shares at market value on a monthly basis. If the eligible employee remains employed by Genesis Energy
for the applicable qualification period (three years), they will receive one free share (award share) for every two purchased shares acquired in the
first scheme year of the qualification period which the eligible employee continues to hold at the end of the qualification period.
If an employee leaves Genesis Energy, they receive all the shares already purchased with their pay deductions; however, in most circumstances,
if an employee leaves within the three-year qualification period, they will not be entitled to receive any award shares. The equity-settled, sharebased payment expense is recognised over the three-year vesting period and is equivalent to the fair value of the award shares provided to the
employee, calculated as at the grant date. The amount recognised as an expense takes into account an expectation of the number of employees
who will leave during the three-year vesting period and will therefore forfeit their shares. At each balance date, the Group revises its estimates
of the employees who have left or are expected to leave during the three-year period; the expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of employees not completing or expected to complete the service condition. A corresponding entry is recognised in equity as a share-based
payment reserve. The estimated fair value of the in-substance nil-price options at grant date was $0.8 million. During the year the Group
expensed $0.204 million in relation to the scheme (2015: $0.080 million).
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15. Property, plant and equipment

13. Receivables and prepayments
2016
$ million

2015
$ million

Trade receivables

93.6

99.4

Accrued revenue

77.1

81.3

Allowance for doubtful receivables

(6.2)

(6.4)

Deferred customer account credits

7.0

–

171.5

174.3

Emission units receivable

1.6

1.1

Other receivables

8.6

1.8

Prepayments

11.3

11.4

Total

193.0

188.6

Current

188.8

187.7

4.2

0.9

193.0

188.6

Non-current
Total

Buildings and
improvements
$ million

2,689.9

1.6

30.7

36.6

2,758.8

0.1

–

–

39.7

39.8

–

–

–

0.3

0.3

–

–

–

1.8

1.8

Transfer to (from) capital work in progress

26.5

0.1

7.3

(33.9)

–

Transfer between asset categories

(0.7)

–

0.5

0.2

–

Note
Carrying value at 1 July 2014
Additions
Capitalised finance expenses

Transfer to intangible assets
Disposals
Impairment
Depreciation expense

14. Inventories

Disposals

Fuel
Petroleum products
Consumables and spare parts
Emission units held for trading

46.9

81.6

Revaluation gains
Change in rehabilitation and contractual arrangement assets
Transfer to (from) capital work in progress
Transfer between asset categories
Transfer to intangible assets
Depreciation expense
Carrying value at 30 June 2016

0.5

0.4

Summary of cost and accumulated depreciation
and impairment

27.0

20.1

Cost
Fair value

4.9

2.3

79.3

104.4

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Current

79.3

80.0

Carrying value at 30 June 2015

–

24.4

Cost

79.3

104.4

Total

Fuel, petroleum, consumables and spare parts are recognised at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost basis which includes expenditure incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, including shipping and
handling. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Fuel inventories mainly consist of coal used in electricity production. The amount of fuel inventories (excluding natural gas) expensed during the
year was $51.9 million (2015: $75.0 million).
Petroleum products consist of LPG and light crude oil held for resale, produced from the Kupe production facility. The amount of petroleum
products expensed during the year was $17.5 million (2015: $28.5 million).
Consumables and spare parts are held to service or repair generating assets. Prior to 30 June 2016, consumables and spare parts relating to
Huntly units 1–4 were written down when incurred as the fair value of these units was nil. The fair value of Huntly units 1–4 was positive at
30 June 2016 (refer to note 15). The net realisable value of Huntly units 1–4 spares at 30 June 2016 was more than cost; as a result the spares
have been written up to cost as at 30 June 2016. This has resulted in a $6.9 million increase in the carrying value of consumables and spare
parts. Consumables and spare parts relating to Huntly unit 6 continue to be written down as incurred as the fair value of this unit is nil.
Emission units held for trading purposes are initially measured at cost and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value. Changes in the fair
value are recognised immediately in profit or loss within other gains (losses).

5

Additions

Total
Non-current

17

Transfer to assets held for sale

Carrying value at 30 June 2015

2015
$ million

7

Change in rehabilitation and contractual arrangement assets

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of prompt-payment discounts. Revenue is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have passed or when the service has been rendered to the customer.
Trade receivables and accrued revenue are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost less any allowance
for doubtful receivables. Trade receivables and accrued revenue which are known to be uncollectable are written off. An allowance for doubtful
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect amounts due. The allowance for doubtful
receivables is the difference between the carrying value and the estimated recoverable amount.
Account credits given to customers as incentives are included in the measurement of revenue and are spread over the length of the average
customer tenure where there is evidence that the return from the customer over the amortisation period is positive.
Emission units receivable from the sale of gas, LPG and oil are accounted for in the period in which the sale is recognised.
2016
$ million

Other property,
plant and Capital work
equipment
in progress
$ million
$ million

Generation
assets
$ million

Fair value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Carrying value at 30 June 2016

17
5

Total
$ million

–

–

–

(9.4)

(9.4)

(3.1)

–

–

–

(3.1)

(3.0)

–

(0.1)

–

(3.1)

–

–

–

(14.0)

(14.0)

(81.7)

(0.1)

(6.8)

–

(88.6)

2,628.0

1.6

31.6

21.3

2,682.5

–

–

–

30.9

30.9

370.6

–

–

–

370.6

–

–

–

2.0

2.0

5.1

0.1

3.7

(8.9)

–

–

–

0.6

(0.6)

–

–

–

0.6

(10.1)

(9.5)

(1.8)

–

(1.3)

–

(3.1)

(78.4)

(0.1)

(6.9)

–

(85.4)

2,923.5

1.6

28.3

34.6

2,988.0

90.0

2.2

107.0

24.9

224.1

2,702.0

–

–

–

2,702.0

(164.0)

(0.6)

(75.4)

(3.6)

(243.6)

2,628.0

1.6

31.6

21.3

2,682.5

–

2.2

111.0

34.6

147.8

2,923.5

–

–

–

2,923.5

–

(0.6)

(82.7)

–

(83.3)

2,923.5

1.6

28.3

34.6

2,988.0

Generation assets
Generation assets include land, buildings, and plant and equipment associated with generation assets. Generation assets are recognised in the
balance sheet at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of their revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. The underlying assumptions used in the revaluation are reviewed annually and revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity, not exceeding five yearly, to ensure the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the balance date.
Any increase in the revaluation of individual generation assets is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless it reverses a revaluation
decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case it is recognised in profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously recognised in profit or loss. A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of individual generation assets is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the asset revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying value of the asset so that the gross carrying
amount after revaluation equals the revalued amount.
Subsequent additions to generation assets are recognised at cost. Cost includes the consideration given to acquire the asset plus any other costs
incurred in bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its intended use including major inspection costs, resource consent and
relationship agreement costs. The cost of assets constructed includes the cost of all materials and direct labour used in construction, resource
consent costs, finance expenses and an appropriate proportion of applicable variable and fixed overheads.
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15. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

15. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Total generation assets were revalued at 30 June 2016 to $2,923.5 million resulting in a net increase on revaluation of $370.6 million.
The revaluation increase associated with Huntly units 1–4 and a portion of the revaluation increase for the Tekapo Power Scheme were
recognised in profit or loss as they reversed previous revaluation losses recognised in 2009 and 2011 respectively. The total increase on
revaluation recognised in profit or loss was $138.0 million. The remainder of the revaluation increase of $232.6 million was recognised in the
revaluation reserve. The increase in fair value was principally driven by higher forecasted wholesale prices and generation volumes, a lower
weighted average cost of capital used to discount future cash flows and positive cash flows from Huntly units 1–4 arising from the extension of
their decommissioning date.
Fair value of generation assets is determined using a discounted cash flow model. The valuation was based on the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the assets. The valuation was prepared by Management and was independently reviewed by PricewaterhouseCoopers
(‘PwC’), who have the appropriate qualifications and experience in valuing generation assets. The valuation was calculated by generating scheme
except for the Huntly site where it was calculated by type of unit (units 1 to 4, unit 5 and unit 6).
Valuation of generation assets requires significant judgement and therefore there is a range of reasonably possible assumptions that could be
used in estimating the fair value of these assets.
The wholesale electricity price path is the key driver of changes in the valuation of generation assets. Changes in the wholesale electricity price
path have a direct impact on generation volumes and operating costs. The wholesale electricity price path is based on an internally generated
forecasted price path which is influenced by changes in electricity demand, hydrology and new generation build. A material change in any one of
these factors could result in a material change to the price path and, therefore, the fair value of generation assets. These factors are reviewed for
reasonableness by senior management personnel who are responsible for the price path used by the business. The price path assumes national
demand growth based on the latest available industry information and Genesis Energy’s view of growth within various sectors of the economy.
Forecast hydrology is based on 83 years of historical hydrological inflow data and new generation build assumptions are based on public
announcements made by market participants and an assessment on the wholesale electricity prices required to support new generation build.
The price path also assumes the on-going operation of New Zealand Aluminium Smelters Limited at Tiwai Point.
Other key assumptions in the valuation include: the current regulatory environment (including the New Zealand Emission Trading Scheme)
being maintained, projected operational and capital expenditure, generation capacity and estimates of the lives of the assets.
The significant unobservable inputs in the valuation model were:

Impairment
Impairment in the 2015 financial year related to capital expenditure on Huntly units 1–4 and 6 and associated structures, and rehabilitation of
the Huntly ash ponds associated with Huntly units 1–4. Refer to note 3 for disclosure of impairment by segment. Expenditure on Huntly units
1–4 is no longer immediately impaired when incurred as the fair value of the units is positive at 30 June 2016. Expenditure associated with
Huntly unit 6 continues to be immediately impaired when incurred as the fair value of this unit is nil.

Significant
unobservable inputs
Wholesale electricity
price path

Generation volumes

Discount rate

Method of determination

Sensitivity range

Impact on fair value Interrelationships between
of generation assets unobservable inputs

In-house modelling of the wholesale electricity Plus/(minus) 10%
market cross-checked against publicly
available price paths. The wholesale electricity
price paths used to value generation assets
range from $65 per MWh to $111 per MWh
over the period from July 2016 to June 2026.

$555 million
to ($555 million)

In-house modelling of the wholesale electricity Plus/(minus) 10%
market. The generation volumes used in the
valuation ranged between 5,215 GWh and
7,452 GWh per annum.

$555 million
to ($555 million)

Pre-tax equivalent discount rate of
10.8 per cent.

$373 million
to ($300 million)

Plus/(minus) 1%

Generation assets carried at historical cost

Hydrological inflows
affect generation volumes
as well as wholesale
electricity prices.
Wholesale electricity
prices affects the amount
of generation.
Discount rate is
independent of wholesale
electricity prices and
generation volumes.
2016
$ million

2015
$ million

The table below presents the carrying value of generation assets as if they were recognised on the historical cost
basis:
Cost

All other categories of property, plant and equipment
All other categories of property, plant and equipment, with the exception of land and capital work in progress, are recognised at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Land and capital work in progress are not depreciated.
Depreciation
For generation assets carried at fair value, their fair value, less any estimated residual value, is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over their estimated remaining useful lives. Where a generation asset’s remaining useful life changes, the depreciation charge is adjusted
prospectively. The estimated remaining useful lives of generation assets used in the depreciation calculation was up to 80 years.
For all other property, plant and equipment carried at cost, their cost, less any estimated residual value, is charged to profit or loss on a straightline basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of different classes of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Estimated useful lives
Buildings and improvements

10 to 50 years

Other plant and equipment

3 to 15 years

The estimated useful lives of assets are reviewed annually. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset. The gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any balance attributable to the disposed asset in
the asset revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

16. Oil and gas assets
Exploration
and evaluation
expenditure
$ million

Oil and gas
producing
assets
$ million

Other oil
and gas
assets
$ million

Capital work
in progress
$ million

Total
$ million

Carrying value at 1 July 2014

1.5

324.5

14.6

1.5

342.1

Additions

0.7

2.3

–

1.2

4.2

–

–

0.1

(0.1)

–

Note

Transfer to (from) capital work in progress
Change in rehabilitation asset

–

1.4

–

–

1.4

–

(54.7)

(0.6)

–

(55.3)

Carrying value at 30 June 2015

2.2

273.5

14.1

2.6

292.4

Additions

8.9

Depreciation and depletion expense

1.6

1.2

–

6.1

Transfer to (from) capital work in progress

–

4.8

0.2

(5.0)

–

Change in rehabilitation asset

–

(3.1)

–

–

(3.1)

–

(29.9)

(0.8)

–

(30.7)

3.8

246.5

13.5

3.7

267.5

Depreciation and depletion expense
Carrying value at 30 June 2016

2,676.6

2,675.0

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

(969.3)

(1,035.0)

Carrying value at 30 June

1,707.3

1,640.0

5

5

Summary of cost and accumulated depreciation,
depletion and impairment
Cost

20.7

553.7

18.5

2.6

595.5

Accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment

(18.5)

(280.2)

(4.4)

–

(303.1)

2.2

273.5

14.1

2.6

292.4

Carrying value at 30 June 2015
Cost

22.3

556.6

18.7

3.7

601.3

Accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment

(18.5)

(310.1)

(5.2)

–

(333.8)

3.8

246.5

13.5

3.7

267.5

Carrying value at 30 June 2016
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16. Oil and gas assets (continued)

17. Intangible assets

Exploration and evaluation expenditure
All exploration and evaluation costs, including directly attributable overheads, general permit activity and geological and geophysical costs are
expensed as incurred except for the costs of drilling exploration wells and the costs of acquiring new interests. The costs of drilling exploration
wells are initially capitalised pending the determination of the success of the well. Costs are expensed immediately where the well does not result
in a successful discovery. Costs incurred before the Group has obtained the legal rights to explore an area are expensed as incurred.
Exploration and evaluation expenditure assets are not amortised; instead, they are assessed annually for indicators of impairment. Any
impairment is recognised in profit or loss. Once commercial approval has been obtained for the development of a project, the accumulated
expenditure in relation to the project is transferred to oil and gas producing assets.

Note
Carrying value at 1 July 2014

102.6

Additions
Transfer from property, plant and equipment

Oil and gas producing assets								
Oil and gas producing assets include costs associated with the production station transferred from development expenditure, mining licences
and major inspection costs. Depletion of oil and gas producing assets excluding major inspection costs is calculated on a unit of production basis
using the proven remaining reserves (1P) disclosed below. Major inspection costs are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period up to the next major inspection. Major inspections occur every two to three years depending on the nature of the work undertaken.
Proven reserves (1P) are the estimated quantities of oil and gas which geological and engineering data demonstrates with reasonable certainty
to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs, under existing economic and operating conditions. Proven reserves (1P) are defined as
those which have a 90 per cent likelihood of being delivered. The proven oil and gas reserves used to deplete the oil and gas producing assets is
reviewed annually. Because the geology of the Kupe oil and gas field subsurface cannot be examined directly, an indirect technique known as
volumetrics has been used to estimate the size and recoverability of the reserve. Reserve estimates contain uncertainty and these are reviewed
annually. There are high levels of uncertainty in terms of accessibility of reserves through sealing faults and pressure support. Proven reserve
estimates have a 90 per cent likelihood of being delivered. A reduction of 10 per cent in these reserves would impact depletion charges going
forward by up to $3.3 million per annum at current production rates.
During the 2015 financial year, the Joint Venture operator initiated a detailed review of Kupe’s field reserves. Gaffney Cline who has appropriate
qualifications and experience in calculating reserves was engaged by the Group to calculate Kupe’s remaining reserves using the information
provided by the Joint Venture operator. Total proven reserves (1P) of the Kupe oil and gas field increased by 136.2 petajoule equivalents (‘PJe’) as
a result of the review. Unit of production depletion rates were adjusted for the change in reserves prospectively from 1 July 2015, in line with the
Group’s accounting policy. This resulted in a $22.6 million decrease in depletion expense for the year.
The table below presents the remaining Kupe oil and gas field reserves in PJe of which the Group has a 31 per cent interest.
Proven reserves (1P)
Proven and probable reserves (2P)
2016
2015
2016
2015
PJe
PJe
PJe
PJe

Disposed of or surrendered

Remaining field reserves at 1 July

188.2

227.4

302.4

341.6

Production

(35.9)

(39.2)

(35.9)

(39.2)

Goodwill
$ million

Amortisation expense

3.2

–

132.1

–

8.8

0.5

–

9.3

9.4

–

–

–

9.4

–

(0.5)

(6.8)

–

–

(7.3)

5

–

(10.2)

–

(1.6)

–

(11.8)

102.6

18.3

8.7

2.1

–

131.7

–

–

8.6

3.4

4.8

16.8

Disposed of or surrendered
5

Carrying value at 30 June 2016

6.7

–

15

Amortisation expense included in other operating
expenditure

19.6

Total
$ million

–

Additions

Amortisation expense

Deferred
Naming
customer
rights acquisition costs
$ million
$ million

15

Carrying value at 30 June 2015
Transfer from property, plant and equipment

Emission
Computer units held
software for own use
$ million
$ million

–

9.5

–

–

–

9.5

–

(0.5)

(6.6)

(0.1)

–

(7.2)

–

(9.9)

–

(1.5)

–

(11.4)

–

–

–

–

(0.9)

(0.9)

102.6

17.4

10.7

3.9

3.9

138.5

102.6

130.9

8.7

11.1

–

253.3

Summary of cost and accumulated amortisation and
impairment
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

–

(112.6)

–

(9.0)

–

(121.6)

102.6

18.3

8.7

2.1

–

131.7

–

–

4.3

–

–

4.3

Non-current

102.6

18.3

4.4

2.1

–

127.4

Carrying value at 30 June 2015

102.6

18.3

8.7

2.1

–

131.7

Cost

102.6

141.3

10.7

14.4

4.8

273.8

–

(123.9)

–

(10.5)

(0.9)

(135.3)

102.6

17.4

10.7

3.9

3.9

138.5

–

–

4.8

–

–

4.8

Carrying value at 30 June 2015
Current

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Change in reserve estimate

136.2

–

121.4

–

Remaining field reserves at 30 June

288.5

188.2

387.9

302.4

Developed

195.3

152.9

238.2

176.0

Non-current

102.6

17.4

5.9

3.9

3.9

133.7

93.2

35.3

149.7

126.4

Carrying value at 30 June 2016

102.6

17.4

10.7

3.9

3.9

138.5

288.5

188.2

387.9

302.4

Undeveloped
Total remaining field reserves at 30 June

Further investment will be required to access the undeveloped field reserves disclosed above.
The table below presents the remaining Kupe oil and gas field reserves by product type which the Group has a 31 per cent interest.
Proven reserves (1P)
Proven and probable reserves (2P)
2016

2015

Gas in PJe

202.9

LPG in kilotonnes

840.0
8.2

Light oil in megabarrels

2016

2015

135.8

279.0

210.6

581.9

1,154.0

902.1

5.3

9.6

8.8

Other oil and gas assets
Other oil and gas assets include land, buildings, storage facilities, sales pipeline, motor vehicles and the ongoing costs of continuing to develop
reserves for production. The cost of other oil and gas assets, less any estimated residual value, is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of other oil and gas assets are as follows:
Estimated useful lives

Carrying value at 30 June 2016
Current

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on the acquisition of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill on the acquisition of associates is included in the investment in associates. Goodwill is assessed as having
an indefinite useful life and is not amortised but is subject to impairment testing annually or whenever there are indications of impairment.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the Customer Experience cash-generating unit (‘CGU’).
The impairment test is based on an estimated discounted cash flow analysis (value in use). Estimated future cash flow projections are based
on the Group’s three-year business plan for the Customer Experience business unit. Cash flows beyond the three-year business plan are
extrapolated using a 1.0 percent year-on-year growth rate (2015: 1.0 per cent). The estimated future cash flow projections are discounted using
a pre-tax equivalent discount rate of 10.8 per cent (2015: 11.0 per cent to 12.2 per cent). Any reasonably possible change in key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount is based is not expected to cause the carrying value of the Customer Experience goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amount.
Key assumptions in the value-in-use calculation were:
Assumptions
Method of determination
Customer numbers and customer churn

Review of actual customer numbers and historical data regarding movements in customer numbers
(the historical analysis is considered against expected market trends and competition for customers)

Buildings

50 years

Gross margin

Review of actual gross margins and consideration of expected market movements and impacts

Storage facilities

25 years

Cost to serve

Review of actual costs to serve and consideration of expected future costs

Sales pipeline

25 years

Motor vehicles

5 years
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17. Intangible assets (continued)

20. Related–party transactions (continued)

Computer software
Items of computer software are assets with finite lives. These assets are recognised at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset from the date it is available for use. The
estimated useful life is between one and four years.

Key management personnel compensation
The key management personnel of the Group consists of the Directors and the Executive Management team. Key management personnel
compensation is as follows:
2016
2015
Note
$ million
$ million

Emission units held for own use
Emission units held for own use are initially recognised at fair value. Fair value is cost in the case of purchased units or the initial market value in
the case of government-granted units. Emission units held for own use to settle the Group’s emission obligation are not revalued subsequent
to initial recognition. They are assessed as having indefinite useful lives and are not amortised but are subject to annual impairment testing or
whenever there are indicators of impairment.

Short‑term benefits

6.6

Post‑employment benefits

0.2

0.2

–

0.3

Termination benefits

Naming rights
Naming rights are assets with finite lives. These assets are recognised at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset from the date it is available for use. The useful life is
based on the contract period which ranges between one and five years.
Deferred customer acquisition costs
Customer acquisition costs which are directly attributable to securing a particular customer contract, and meet the definition of an intangible
asset, are capitalised and amortised over the average customer tenure (30 months). Amortisation of the customer acquisition costs is included
within operating expenditure.

18. Investments in subsidiaries
Interest held
2016
2015
%
%

Name of entity

Principal activity

Place of incorporation
and operation

Genesis Power Investments Limited

Holding company

New Zealand

100

100

Kupe Holdings Limited

Joint venture holding company

New Zealand

100

100

GP No. 2 Limited

Joint venture holding company

New Zealand

100

100

GP No. 5 Limited

Joint venture holding company

New Zealand

100

100

Genesis Energy Insurance Pte Limited

Captive insurance company

Singapore

100

100

Genesis Energy Limited Executive Long-term
Incentive Plan Trust

Trust

New Zealand

–

–

All subsidiaries have 30 June balance dates.

19. Joint operations
The Group has a 31.0 per cent interest in the Kupe production facility and Petroleum Mining Permit 38146 held by the Kupe Joint Venture
(2015: 31.0 per cent). The principal activity of the Kupe Joint Venture is petroleum production and sales. The Joint Venture is unincorporated
and operates in New Zealand. The Group is considered to share joint control based on the contractual arrangements between the Group and
other joint operators that state unanimous decision-making is required for relevant activities which most significantly impact the returns of the
joint operation.
The Joint Venture is classified as a joint operation under NZ IFRS 11. The operating results of the Kupe Joint Venture are included in the Oil and
Gas segment in note 3 and the Group’s share of capital expenditure commitments relating to joint operations is disclosed in note 27.

20. Related–party transactions
Majority shareholder and entities controlled by and related to the majority shareholder
The majority shareholder of the Parent is the Crown. The Parent and Group transact with Crown-controlled and related entities independently
and on an arm’s-length basis for the purchase of coal and use of coal-handling facilities, emission activities including emission unit purchases and
sales, royalties, scientific consultancy services, electricity transmission, postal services and energy-related products (including electricity derivatives).
All transactions with Crown-controlled and related entities are based on commercial terms and conditions, and relevant market drivers.
The Group has two significant transactions with Meridian Energy, a Crown-controlled entity, being: a 150MW contract to provide dry-year cover
for four years from 1 January 2015 and a 50MW contract to supply electricity to the Huntly node from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2018.
Dividends paid to the Crown during the year were $112.0 million (2015: $106.3 million). There were no other individually significant transactions
with the Crown and Crown-controlled and related entities during the year (2015: nil).
Other transactions with Crown-controlled and related entities, which are collectively but not individually significant, relate to the purchase of
coal, the sale of gas and electricity derivatives. All of the coal acquired by the Group during the year was supplied by Crown-controlled and
related entities under coal supply agreements which were exited in October 2015 (2015: 100.0 per cent). Approximately 6.7 per cent (2015:
13.7 per cent) of the gas sales were made to Crown-controlled and related entities under gas sales agreements which expired in December
2015. Approximately 89.9 per cent of the value of electricity derivative assets and approximately 63.2 per cent of the value of electricity
derivative liabilities held by the Group at year-end are held with Crown-controlled and related entities (2015: 79.5 per cent and 15.4 per cent,
respectively). The contracts expire at various times; the latest expiry date is December 2025.

Share-based payments
Total key management personnel compensation

12

6.8

–

0.1

6.8

7.4

Other transactions with key management personnel or entities related to them
Key management personnel and their families may purchase gas and electricity from the Group on an arm’s-length basis and may purchase
shares in the Company. Key management personnel also participate in the LTI plan discussed in note 12. The total number of shares held by
key management personnel (excluding LTI shares) as at 30 June 2016 was 573,225 (2015: 784,188). During the year, dividends paid to key
management personnel and their families was $102,101 (2015: $99,558). No other transactions took place between key management personnel
and the Group (2015: nil). As at 30 June 2016, the balance payable to key management personnel was nil (2015: nil).

21. Payables and accruals
2016
$ million

2015
$ million

159.3

150.2

Employee benefits

5.1

5.9

Emission obligations

3.2

2.9

Total

167.6

159.0

Current

166.8

158.3

0.8

0.7

167.6

159.0

Trade payables and accruals

Non-current
Total

Trade payables and accruals are recognised when the Group becomes obligated to make future payments resulting from the purchase of goods
or services, and are subsequently carried at amortised cost.
A liability for employee benefits (wages and salaries, annual and long-service leave, and employee incentives) is recognised when it is probable
that settlement will be required and the amount is capable of being measured reliably. Provisions made in respect of employee benefits are
measured using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
Emission obligations are recognised as a liability when the Group incurs the emission obligation. Emission units payable to third parties are
recognised at the average cost of emission units on hand up to the amount of emission units on hand at the recognition date. Where the
emission obligation exceeds the level of units on hand, the excess obligation over the units on hand is measured at the contract price where
forward contracts exist or the market price for any obligation not covered by units on hand or forward contracts.

22. Borrowings
Revolving credit and money market
Wholesale term notes

2016
$ million

2015
$ million

50.1

101.0

319.7

320.1

Retail term notes

100.2

107.1

Capital bonds

202.6

202.6

USPP

239.6

227.4

Total

912.2

958.2

Current

136.2

117.8

Non-current

776.0

840.4

Total

912.2

958.2

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Borrowings designated in a hedge relationship are carried at amortised cost adjusted for the change in the fair value of the hedged risk. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
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22. Borrowings (continued)

22. Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the balance date.
2016
2015
$ million
$ million

During the 2015 financial year, the Group entered into a firm commitment for the issue of $150.0 million United States dollar-denominated
unsecured notes to United States-based institutional investors. A Note Purchase Agreement (‘NPA’) was signed on 25 November 2014.
CCIRS have been used to manage foreign exchange and interest rate risks on the notes (refer to note 24 for further information on CCIRS).
The USPP is measured at amortised cost adjusted for the change in fair value associated with the hedged risks in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. While the New Zealand dollar amount required to repay the USPP in 2026 and 2027 is fixed as a result of the CCIRS, the
USPP is required to be translated to New Zealand dollars at the spot rate at the reporting date, in accordance with NZ IFRS. Any increase/
decrease in the carrying value of the USPP as a result of this translation is offset by the movement in the fair value of the CCIRS disclosed in
note 24.

Revolving credit and money market
Revolving credit drawn down
Accrued interest
Total revolving credit and money market

50.0

100.0

0.1

1.0

50.1

101.0
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Revolving credit
Expiring 2018

175.0

75.0

Expiring 2019

–

75.0

Expiring 2020

100.0

225.0

Expiring 2021

150.0

–

Expiring 2022

–

50.0

Expiring 2023
Total available revolving credit facility
Revolving credit drawn down (excluding accrued interest)

75.0

–

500.0

425.0

50.0

100.0

450.0

325.0

Expiring 2017

125.0

125.0

Expiring 2020

120.0

120.0

Expiring 2023

70.0

70.0

Total undrawn revolving credit facility
Wholesale term notes

Fair value interest rate risk adjustment

0.5

1.0

Accrued interest

4.6

4.5

Capitalised issue costs

(0.4)

(0.4)

319.7

320.1

Expiring 2016

–

105.0

Expiring 2022

100.0

–

Total wholesale term notes
Retail term notes

Accrued interest
Capitalised issue costs
Total retail term notes

1.2

2.4

(1.0)

(0.3)

100.2

107.1

200.0

200.0

2.6

2.6

202.6

202.6

Capital bonds
Expiring 2042
Accrued interest
Total capital bonds

The Group may redeem all or some of the capital bonds on a reset date or on any quarterly interest payment date after the first reset date, which
is 16 July 2018. On the first reset date and every five years thereafter, the interest rate will reset to be the sum of the five-year swap rate on the
relevant reset date plus a margin of 2.4 per cent. Redemptions on a reset date are at par; redemptions on a quarterly interest payment date must
be at the greater of par or market value.
2016
2015
$ million
$ million
USPP
Expiring 2026

70.1

73.8

Expiring 2027

140.3

147.5

27.2

4.0

2.8

3.0

Fair value interest rate risk adjustment
Accrued interest
Capitalised issue costs
Total USPP

(0.8)

(0.9)

239.6

227.4

Security								
All of the Group’s borrowings are unsecured. The Group borrows under a negative pledge arrangement, which does not permit the Group to
grant any security interest over its assets, unless it is an exception permitted within the negative pledge.

23. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as the
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
Rehabilitation and restoration
The rehabilitation and restoration provision relates to the Meremere generation site, the Huntly ash ponds and the Kupe production facility.
These sites require remediation as a result of past and present operations. Different methods and techniques can be used to remediate the sites.
The provision represents the present value of the Group’s best estimate of future expenditure to be incurred based on the Group’s assessment
of the most appropriate methods to remediate the sites at balance date. Key assumptions include: an estimate of when the rehabilitation and
restoration is likely to take place, the possible remediation alternatives available, the expected expenditures attached to each alternative and the
foreign currency exchange rate at balance date.
There is no financial provision for the remediation of the Huntly generation site because the Company has the right to lease the site in perpetuity.
There is no fixed or planned termination date for the Huntly lease, and the site remains a key electricity generation site for the Company. The lease
of the site is independent to decisions around the retirement of Huntly units 1–4 which are planned to be retired by 31 December 2022. There
may be costs and recoveries associated with retiring Huntly units 1–4, but these cannot be reliably estimated at this time.
The key assumption that could have a material impact on the Meremere generation site rehabilitation estimate relates to the extent of
rehabilitation required at the end of the lease. The extent of rehabilitation depends on the effectiveness of the historical rehabilitation work and
the rehabilitation obligations under the lease. The current assumption is that the current remediation work with some further tidy-up at the end
of the lease in 2017 will be sufficient. If future monitoring indicates that the clay caps need further remediation work, the provision would need to
increase by up to $2.0 million. The site is monitored regularly and the rehabilitation plan amended as necessary.
The key assumption that could have a material impact on the Huntly ash ponds rehabilitation estimate relates to the extent of rehabilitation work
required. The current assumption is that all the ash would be removed from the ponds but, if some of the ash were capped in situ, the provision
could decrease by $9.0 million. The rehabilitation work on the ash ponds is estimated to be completed within the next seven years.
The key assumptions that could have a material impact on the Kupe production facility rehabilitation estimate relates to foreign exchange
rates, scrap-steel prices, labour rates, concrete removal costs, offshore supply vessel and jack-up rig rates, and associated mobilisation and
demobilisation costs. The majority of costs are based in United States dollars and, therefore, are sensitive to fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates. Given the equipment required to complete the rehabilitation comes from overseas, the mobilisation and demobilisation costs can fluctuate
significantly depending on the volume of other work the contractor has at the time the rehabilitation is required to be completed. If the foreign
exchange rate were to decrease by 10 per cent and if the transportation costs for the mobilisation and demobilisation were unable to be shared
with other entities, the provision would increase by $18.1 million. Also affecting the provision are regulations around the removal of the subsea
pipeline. Currently, there are no regulations around this and, as such, the provision assumes the subsea pipeline will be flushed and left in situ.
The rehabilitation is estimated to be completed in approximately 13 years.
Contractual arrangements
The contractual arrangements provision relates to relationship and sponsorship agreements with various parties. The provision represents the
present value of the best estimate of cash flows required to settle the Group’s obligations under the agreements. The timing of the outflows is
expected to occur over the next 23 years.
Other provisions
Other provisions represent the onerous contract provision associated with changes to contractual arrangements and other minor provisions.
The onerous contracts provision relates to onerous lease agreements associated with coal importation. The provision is based on the cash flows
associated with the contracts. The timing of the outflows is expected to occur over the next four years.
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23. Provisions (continued)

24. Derivatives (continued)
Note

Balance at 1 July 2014

Other
provisions
$ million

Total
$ million

69.6

54.4

16.5

140.5

5.4

0.7

3.9

10.0

–

(0.5)

(10.0)

(10.5)

(1.7)

(4.2)

(4.3)

(10.2)

3.4

2.4

0.4

6.2

Balance at 30 June 2015

76.7

52.8

6.5

136.0

Provisions made during the year

0.8

5.7

2.0

8.5

Provisions reversed during the year

(3.2)

(0.3)

(0.1)

(3.6)

Provisions used during the year

(2.3)

(4.4)

(1.8)

(8.5)

3.7

2.2

0.2

6.1

75.7

56.0

6.8

138.5

Provisions made during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Provisions used during the year
Time value of money adjustment
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Rehabilitation Contractual
and restoration arrangements
$ million
$ million

Time value of money adjustment
Balance at 30 June 2016
Current

7

7

2.4

8.5

1.4

12.3

Non-current

74.3

44.3

5.1

123.7

As at 30 June 2015

76.7

52.8

6.5

136.0

5.0

8.1

2.2

15.3

Non-current

70.7

47.9

4.6

123.2

As at 30 June 2016

75.7

56.0

6.8

138.5

Current

24. Derivatives
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group uses the following derivatives to hedge its financial risk exposures:
– Interest rate swaps
– Foreign exchange swaps and options
– Electricity swaps and options
– Oil swaps
– CCIRS
– Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of emission units held for trading
– LPG swaps.
The Group also enters into electricity derivatives with wholesale electricity market participants which allows them to hedge wholesale electricity
market exposures.
During the 2015 financial year, the Group entered into CCIRS to swap the United States dollar principal and fixed coupon obligation for the
USPP disclosed in note 22.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so,
the nature of the item being hedged.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
– cash flow hedges where the Group hedges the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable either to a particular risk associated with
a recognised asset or liability or to a highly probable forecast transaction; or
– fair value hedges where the Group hedges the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset or liability.
The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between the hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been and will continue to be highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
Forward sale-and-purchase agreements in relation to emission units held for trading do not meet the ‘own use’ exemption and, therefore, meet
the definition of a derivative. These contracts are initially recognised at fair value on the date the contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value. Changes in the fair value are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Derivatives designated in a cash flow hedge relationship
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulate in the cash flow hedge reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period when the hedged item will affect the profit
or loss. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example, inventory) or
liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in the cash flow hedge reserve are reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve and included in
the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.
When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the cumulative gain or loss at that time remains in the cash flow hedge reserve and is reclassified to profit or loss when the transaction occurs.
If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified
immediately to profit or loss.
The margin and basis component of the CCIRS is designated as a cash flow hedge of the margin and basis component of the USPP notes. The
interest rate risk associated with interest on New Zealand dollar borrowings is hedged using interest rate swaps. Foreign currency risk associated
with future foreign currency cash flows is hedged using forward exchange derivatives. Electricity and oil derivatives are used to manage price risk
associated with spot market exposures.
Derivatives designated in a fair value hedge relationship
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in profit or loss, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.
The USPP and $25.0 million of the wholesale term notes are designated in fair value hedge relationships. CCIRS are used to swap the United
States-dollar principal and fixed coupon obligations related to the notes to New Zealand dollar floating rate exposure. Interest rate swaps are
used to convert the fixed coupons on wholesale term notes to floating rates.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Changes in the fair value of any derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
2016
Net carrying value of derivatives
$ million

2015
$ million

Derivatives designated in a cash flow hedge relationship
Foreign exchange swaps

3.3

(10.3)

Interest rate swaps

(32.0)

(16.7)

Electricity swaps

(28.3)

(2.7)

Oil swaps

3.9

10.6

CCIRS

12.1

24.3

0.5

1.0

23.3

1.4

Derivatives designated in a fair value hedge relationship
Interest rate swaps
CCIRS

Derivatives not designated as hedges
Interest rate swaps

(4.6)

–

Electricity swaps and options

10.4

28.1

Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of emission units held for trading (Forward ‘S&P’ agreements)

–

0.2

LPG swaps

(0.1)

–

Total

(11.5)

35.9

Current assets

19.9

34.2

Non-current assets

53.0

53.9

Carrying value of derivatives by balance sheet classification

Current liabilities

(27.6)

(21.5)

Non-current liabilities

(56.8)

(30.7)

(11.5)

35.9

Total
Derivatives that are settled within 12 months are treated as current.
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24. Derivatives (continued)

Change in carrying value of derivatives

25. Financial instruments and financial risk management

Note

Other*
$ million

Electricity
swaps and
options
Total
$ million $ million

Balance as at 1 July 2014

–

–

(4.4)

(1.9)

4.7

(6.2)

(7.8)

Total change recognised in electricity revenue

–

–

–

–

–

24.9

24.9

0.2

–

–

–

(1.6)

27.6

26.2

– Net change in derivatives not designated
as hedges
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Foreign
Interest exchange swaps
CCIRS Oil swaps rate swaps
and options
$ million $ million $ million
$ million

– Net change in fair value hedges

–

1.4

–

(0.4)

–

–

1.0

– Ineffective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges

–

(0.2)

5.1

(0.4)

0.1

1.5

6.1

0.2

1.2

5.1

(0.8)

(1.5)

29.1

33.3

Gain (loss) recognised in other comprehensive
income

–

24.5

19.2

(15.4)

(15.9)

8.8

21.2

Settlements

–

–

(9.3)

2.4

2.2

(7.4)

(12.1)

Sales (option fees)

–

–

–

–

–

(23.8)

(23.8)

Total change recognised in the change in
fair value of financial instruments

6

Purchases (option fees)

–

–

–

–

0.2

–

0.2

0.2

25.7

10.6

(15.7)

(10.3)

25.4

35.9

–

–

–

–

–

23.3

23.3

(0.3)

–

–

(0.1)

–

(17.9)

(18.3)

– Net change in fair value hedges

–

21.9

–

(0.5)

–

–

21.4

– Ineffective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges

–

0.1

(3.1)

(4.1)

(0.1)

0.2

(7.0)

(0.3)

22.0

(3.1)

(4.7)

(0.1)

(17.7)

(3.9)

Gain (loss) recognised in other comprehensive
income

–

(3.7)

18.0

(27.9)

6.9

(10.9)

(17.6)

Settlements

–

(8.6)

(21.6)

12.2

6.8

(15.0)

(26.2)

Sales (option fees)

–

–

–

–

–

(23.0)

(23.0)

(0.1)

35.4

3.9

(36.1)

3.3

(17.9)

(11.5)

Balance as at 30 June 2015
Total change recognised in electricity revenue
– Net change in derivatives not designated
as hedges

Total change recognised in the change in
fair value of financial instruments

6

Balance as at 30 June 2016
*Other includes Forward ‘S&P’ agreements and LPG swaps

Reconciliation of movements in the cash flow
hedge reserve
Balance as at 1 July 2014
Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss
Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to the cost of
assets
Effective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges recognised directly in the
cash flow hedge reserve
Total change in cash flow hedge reserve
Income tax on change in cash flow hedge reserve

Interest
Foreign
CCIRS Oil swaps rate swaps exchange swaps
$ million $ million $ million
$ million

Electricity
swaps
Total
$ million $ million

–

(2.0)

(2.4)

2.0

(2.7)

(5.1)

(30.6)

(9.2)

2.4

3.4

(7.5)

(41.5)

–

–

–

0.2

–

0.2

24.5

19.2

(15.4)

(15.9)

8.8

21.2

(6.1)

10.0

(13.0)

(12.3)

1.3

(20.1)

1.7

(2.8)

3.6

3.5

(0.4)

5.6

(4.4)

5.2

(11.8)

(6.8)

(1.8)

(19.6)

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss

2.4

(21.6)

12.3

5.9

(15.0)

(16.0)

Effective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges recognised directly in the
cash flow hedge reserve

(3.7)

18.0

(27.9)

6.9

(10.9)

(17.6)

Total change in cash flow hedge reserve

(1.3)

(3.6)

(15.6)

12.8

(25.9)

(33.6)

Income tax on change in cash flow hedge reserve

0.4

1.0

4.4

(3.6)

7.2

9.4

Balance as at 30 June 2016

(5.3)

2.6

(23.0)

2.4

(20.5)

(43.8)

Balance as at 30 June 2015

The gain (loss) on interest rate swaps and CCIRS is recognised in finance expenses, the gain (loss) on foreign exchange swaps and options is
recognised in other operating expenses and gas revenue, the gain (loss) on electricity swaps and options is recognised in electricity revenue in
the profit or loss and the gain (loss) on oil swaps is recognised in petroleum revenue.

Financial instruments
For financial reporting purposes, the Group designates its financial instruments into the following categories:
Loans and receivables
– Cash and cash equivalents
– Receivables
Financial instruments in a hedge relationship
– Foreign exchange swaps
– Interest rate swaps
– Electricity swaps
– Oil swaps
– CCIRS
Financial instruments held for trading (derivatives not in a hedge relationship)
– Interest rate swaps
– Electricity swaps and options
– Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of emission units held for trading
– LPG swaps
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
– Payables
– Borrowings
Risk management
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise financial risk to the
Group. The Board of Directors (the ‘Board’) has established policies which provide an overall risk management framework, as well as policies
covering specific areas, such as electricity and oil price risk, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivatives and the
investment of excess liquidity. Interest rate, foreign exchange and oil price exposures are managed by the central Treasury function (‘Treasury’)
and electricity exposures are managed by the portfolio management function, with oversight by the risk management function (‘Risk’). Treasury
and Risk identify, evaluate and hedge financial risks in close cooperation with the Group’s operating units. Compliance with policies and exposure
limits is monitored by Risk and independently reviewed by the Group’s internal auditor.
Price risk
The Group is exposed to movements in the spot price of electricity arising through the sale and purchase of electricity to and from the market.
The Group is also exposed to movements in the spot price of light crude oil arising from sales of its share of oil from the Kupe production facility.
The Group has limited exposure to changes in the sale price for gas and LPG as most of the volume is forward sold.
Electricity sales and purchases
The Group manages price risk in relation to electricity sales and purchases by entering into electricity swaps and options. Electricity swaps and
options are either traded on the ASX or negotiated bilaterally with other energy companies and major customers. Electricity options are entered
into as needs are identified and as counterparties seek to hedge their electricity purchase exposure. At balance date, the Group had electricity
option contracts giving counterparties the right to exercise call options and electricity cap contracts.
The aggregate notional face value of the outstanding electricity swaps and options at balance date was $1,419.4 million (2015: $1,482.5 million).
Light crude oil sales
The Group manages price risk in respect of oil sales by entering into price swap contracts which provide a fixed price for future oil sales. The
Group’s Treasury policy sets minimum and maximum control limits ranging from between 50 per cent and 90 per cent for the first 12 months to
between 25 per cent and 75 per cent for months 13 to 24.
The aggregate notional value of the outstanding oil swaps at balance date was 29.0 million United States dollars (2015: 37.8 million United
States dollars).
The value of electricity and oil swaps are sensitive to changes in forward prices, and oil swaps are also sensitive to movements in foreign exchange
rates. The table below summarises the impact an increase/decrease in these forward pricing assumptions would have on the Group’s posttax profit or loss for the year and on the Group’s cash flow hedge reserve using year end exposures. The sensitivity analysis is based on the
assumption that the relevant market prices (future electricity and oil price paths) had increased/decreased by 10 per cent with all other variables
held constant. A positive number represents an increase in profit or the cash flow hedge reserve.
There have been no changes in the methods and assumptions used in the sensitivity calculations from the previous year.

GENESIS ENERGY Annual Report 2016

58

25. Financial instruments and financial risk management (continued)

25. Financial instruments and financial risk management (continued)
2016
$ million

2015
$ million

Currency of contract

Electricity swaps and options

Post–tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity)

Post-tax impact on profit or loss

United States dollar

+10%

(16.8)

(5.8)

–10%

11.9

3.8

+10%

(6.8)

(4.9)

–10%

6.9

4.9

% change in rate
+10%

Japanese yen

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Post-tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity)

Oil swaps
Post-tax impact on profit or loss
+10%

(0.1)

(0.5)

–10%

0.1

0.5

+10%

(2.2)

(2.7)

–10%

2.2

2.7

Post-tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity)

Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of capital and operational transactions and borrowings denominated in a currency other
than the Group’s functional currency (including the purchase of capital equipment and maintenance and the sale of gas and petroleum). The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the United States dollar and Japanese yen.
The Group uses foreign exchange swaps and options to manage foreign exchange risk on capital and operational transactions. All significant
capital project commitments and all capital purchase orders where exposure and currency levels are confirmed are hedged. All sales, operational
commitments and purchase orders denominated in foreign currency over the equivalent of $500,000 New Zealand dollars are also hedged in
accordance with the Group’s Treasury policy. For ongoing operating commitments, the equivalent of at least the next 12 months’ exposure must
be hedged. For the currency exposure arising from the sale of oil and gas, the policy sets minimum and maximum control limits ranging between
50 per cent and 90 per cent for the first 12 months to between 25 per cent and 75 per cent for months 13 to 24.
The Group uses CCIRS to manage foreign exchange risk on overseas borrowings. All interest and principal repayments are hedged. The
combination of the foreign-denominated debt and the CCIRS results in a net exposure to New Zealand floating interest rates and a fixed New
Zealand-denominated principal repayment. The New Zealand floating interest rate risk is managed using the process described in the interest
rate risk section below.
The following table details the foreign exchange swaps and options outstanding at balance date. A positive number represents a buy contract and
a negative number represents a sell contract.
Foreign amount
Face value
Fair value
2016
2015
2016
2015
2016
2015
Currency of contract
million
million
$ million
$ million
$ million
$ million
Foreign exchange swaps
United States dollar

(38.3)

(60.0)

(57.2)

(80.1)

2.7

(9.9)

Japanese yen

895.1

1,183.5

11.7

15.3

0.6

(0.4)

150.0

150.0

193.2

193.2

35.4

25.7

147.7

128.4

38.7

15.4

CCIRS
United States dollar
Total foreign exchange swaps and options

The values of foreign exchange swaps and options and CCIRS are sensitive to changes in the forward prices of currencies. Foreign currency
borrowings are fully hedged against movements in foreign currencies. Any movements in the value of borrowings, or in the interest payable due
to a movement in the exchange rate, are offset by any equal and opposite movements in the value and cash flows applicable to the hedge.
The table below summarises the impact an increase/decrease in foreign exchange rates would have on the Group’s post-tax profit or loss for the
year and on the Group’s cash flow hedge reserve based on year end exposures. The sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that the New
Zealand dollar had weakened/strengthened by 10 per cent against the currencies with which the Group has foreign currency risk, with all other
variables held constant. A positive number represents an increase in profit or the cash flow hedge reserve.
There have been no changes in the methods and assumptions used in the sensitivity calculations from the previous year.

2016
$ million

2015
$ million

3.5

5.8

–10%

(4.3)

(7.1)

+10%

(0.8)

(0.9)

–10%

1.0

1.1

Total foreign exchange swaps and options

+10%

2.7

4.9

Total foreign exchange swaps and options

–10%

(3.3)

(6.0)

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because the Parent borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The Group uses interest
rate swaps to manage interest rate risk. The Group’s policy sets maximum and minimum control limits for fixed interest rate exposure which
range from between 50 per cent and 100 per cent of projected debt with an age profile of less than one year to a maximum of 50 per cent for
projected debt with an age profile of greater than five years and a maximum of 20 per cent for projected debt with an age profile of greater than
10 years. The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities is disclosed in the liquidity risk section of this note.
The following table details the notional principal amounts and the remaining terms of interest rate swaps outstanding at balance date:
Average contracted
Notional principal
fixed interest rates
amount
Fair value
2016
2015
2016
2015
2016
2015
%
%
$ million
$ million
$ million
$ million
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than two years

5.08

3.67

100.0

50.0

0.2

(1.2)

–

5.08

–

100.0

–

(2.9)

Later than two years and not later than five years

5.14

5.23

110.0

90.0

(10.0)

(3.7)

Later than five years

4.89

5.06

220.0

265.0

(26.2)

(7.9)

5.00

4.96

430.0

505.0

(36.0)

(15.7)

The values of interest rate swaps are sensitive to changes in forward interest rates. The table below summarises the impact an increase/decrease
in interest rates would have on the Group’s post-tax profit or loss for the year and on the Group’s cash flow hedge reserve. The sensitivity
analysis is based on the assumption that interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant based on year
end exposures. A positive number represents an increase in profit or the cash flow hedge reserve.
There have been no changes in the methods and assumptions used in the sensitivity calculations from the previous year.
2016
2015
$ million
$ million
Post-tax impact on profit
+1%

0.5

(0.6)

–1%

(0.5)

0.8

+1%

10.5

11.1

–1%

(11.3)

(12.1)

Post-tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity)

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations, resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group is
exposed to credit risk in the normal course of business arising from trade receivables and with banks and financial institutions where short-term
deposits are held. The Group is also exposed to credit risk arising from derivative counterparties defaulting on their contractual obligations.
The Group is a producer and retailer of electricity and gas. In terms of wholesale sales to the national grid, credit risk is significantly reduced as
the Group purchases from the grid for its retail customer base with credit risk being limited to the net position on settlement. In addition, market
security requirements in place ensure that there is no significant credit risk for any one participant. Market participants are required to provide
letters of credit to the market clearing agent (NZX Limited), which would be called upon should any market participant default.
Credit risk exposure arising from the supply of electricity and gas to the retail market is mitigated due to the Group’s large customer base and, in
respect of its larger customers, the diverse range of industries they represent throughout New Zealand. The Group has adopted a policy of only
dealing with creditworthy trade counterparties and obtaining collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults. The Group also minimises its exposure to credit risk in this area through the adoption of counterparty credit limits, and active creditmanagement practices such as monitoring the size and nature of exposures and mitigating the risk deemed to be above acceptable levels.
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25. Financial instruments and financial risk management (continued)

25. Financial instruments and financial risk management (continued)

A bond is held as collateral from any post-paid electricity customer whose credit profile does not meet the standard set by the Group. The bond
is managed in accordance with the terms and conditions outlined in the supply agreement with individual customers. The bond is returned to the
customer at cessation of supply. The value of collateral held at balance date was $1.0 million (2015: $3.6 million). The carrying value of the bond
is considered to approximate its fair value.
Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high-credit-quality financial institutions and other organisations. The Group’s
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored, and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any one financial institution.
The carrying amounts of financial assets recognised in the balance sheet best represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date.
Liquidity risk
The Group’s liquidity risk arises from its ability to attract cost-effective funding; this is largely driven by its credit standing (Standard & Poor’s =
BBB+). Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the spreading of debt maturities.
Liquidity risk is monitored by continuously forecasting cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
The table below details the Group’s liquidity analysis for its financial liabilities and derivatives. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash inflows (outflows) for all financial liabilities and derivatives. The amounts in the table are the undiscounted contractual cash
flows. Where the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the internally generated
forward price curves existing at balance date. As the amounts included in the tables are contractual undiscounted cash flows, these amounts will
not reconcile to the amounts disclosed in the balance sheet.
As at 30 June 2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Revolving credit and money market
Wholesale term notes
Retail term notes
Capital bonds
USPP
Derivative assets (liabilities)
Net-settled derivatives
Interest rate swaps (cash flow hedges)
Interest rate swaps (not designated as
hedges)
Interest rate swaps (fair value hedges)
Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges)
Electricity swaps and options (not designated
as hedges)
Oil swaps (cash flow hedges)
LPG swaps
Gross–settled derivatives
Foreign exchange swaps (cash flow hedges)
– Inflows
– Outflows
CCIRS
– Inflows
– Outflows

Weighted average
effective interest rate
%
Non-bearing

Less than
1 year
$ million
(164.4)

1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years
$ million
$ million
–

–

More than Total contractual
5 years
cash flows
$ million
$ million
–

(164.4)

5.2

(2.6)

(2.6)

(57.1)

–

(62.3)

6.7

(143.1)

(12.5)

(147.7)

(78.1)

(381.4)
(124.7)

4.3

(4.1)

(4.1)

(12.4)

(104.1)

6.2

(12.4)

(12.4)

(37.1)

(450.7)

(512.6)

4.2

(7.7)

(7.7)

(23.2)

(253.3)

(291.9)

(334.3)

(39.3)

(277.5)

(886.2)

(1,537.3)

(3.7)

(4.5)

(18.3)

(9.4)

(35.9)

(1.4)

(1.2)

(2.4)

(0.1)

(5.1)

1.1

–

–

–

1.1

(17.4)

(7.9)

(4.8)

0.8

(29.3)

10.0

9.4

6.3

(6.9)

18.8

2.4

1.6

(0.2)

–

3.8

(0.1)

–

–

–

(0.1)

2.7

1.7

0.6

–

5.0

(0.9)

(0.1)

–

–

(1.0)

7.7

7.7

23.2

253.3

291.9

(7.7)

(7.5)

(23.6)

(242.3)

(281.1)

(7.3)

(0.8)

(19.2)

(4.6)

(31.9)

The foreign exchange swaps cash flows above include $0.2 million inflow in the less-than-one-year category in relation to capital projects which
would not be recognised in profit or loss.

As at 30 June 2015
Non–derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Revolving credit and money market
Wholesale term notes
Retail term notes
Capital bonds
USPP
Derivative assets (liabilities)
Net–settled derivatives
Interest rate swaps (cash flow hedges)
Interest rate swaps (fair value hedges)
Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges)
Electricity swaps and options (not designated
as hedges)
Oil swaps (cash flow hedges)
Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of
emission units held for trading
Gross–settled derivatives
Foreign exchange swaps (cash flow hedges)
– Inflows
– Outflows
CCIRS
– Inflows
– Outflows

Weighted average
effective interest rate
%

Less than
1 year
$ million

1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years
$ million
$ million

More than Total contractual
5 years
cash flows
$ million
$ million

Non-bearing

(156.1)

–

–

–

5.6

(5.7)

(5.6)

(105.8)

–

(156.1)
(117.1)

6.8

(21.4)

(143.3)

(156.1)

(82.2)

(403.0)

8.0

(113.0)

–

–

–

(113.0)

6.2

(12.4)

(12.4)

(37.1)

(463.1)

(525.0)

5.4

(8.1)

(8.1)

(24.4)

(274.7)

(315.3)

(316.7)

(169.4)

(323.4)

(820.0)

(1,629.5)

(1.5)

(4.1)

(11.2)

(2.1)

(18.9)

0.6

1.0

–

–

1.6

2.5

(2.2)

(2.3)

(1.2)

(3.2)

11.5

7.5

11.6

–

30.6

10.1

0.3

–

–

10.4

0.2

–

–

–

0.2

0.1

–

–

–

0.1

(7.3)

(2.1)

(0.1)

–

(9.5)

8.1

8.1

24.4

274.6

315.2

(9.5)

(9.2)

(30.8)

(269.3)

(318.8)

14.8

(0.7)

(8.4)

2.0

7.7

The foreign exchange swaps cash flows above include no inflow in the less-than-one-year category in relation to capital projects which would
not be recognised in profit or loss.
Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital in a prudent manner to ensure that each entity in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the appropriate balance of debt and equity. This is achieved by ensuring that the level and timing
of its capital investment programmes, equity raisings and dividend distributions are consistent with the Group’s capital structure strategy. This
strategy remains unchanged from previous years. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed
in note 22, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
earnings as disclosed in the balance sheet.
Under the Group’s debt funding facilities, the Group has given undertakings that the ratio of debt to equity will not exceed a prescribed level
and the interest cover will not be below a prescribed level. For the purpose of these undertakings, the capital bonds and related interest costs
are treated as 50 per cent equity. The covenants are monitored on a regular basis to ensure they are complied with. There were no breaches in
covenants during the year (2015: nil).

26. Fair value
Fair value hierarchy
The Group’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value are categorised into one of three levels as follows:
Level one – the fair value is determined using unadjusted quoted prices from an active market for identical assets and liabilities. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, a dealer, a broker, an industry group, a pricing service or a
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s-length basis.
Level two – the fair value is derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within level one that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). Financial instruments in this level include interest rate swaps, foreign
exchange swaps, oil swaps and electricity derivatives which are valued using observable electricity price paths.
Level three – the fair value is derived from inputs that are not based on observable market data. Financial instruments included in this level
include electricity derivatives which are valued using internally generated electricity price paths.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer. There were no transfers between levels one, two and three during the year (2015: nil).
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26. Fair value (continued)

26. Fair value (continued)

Level two items carried at fair value

2016
$ million

Recurring fair value measurements
Level two

Derivatives
Interest rate swaps
Foreign exchange swaps
Oil swaps
Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

2015
$ million

Electricity swaps and options (not designated as hedges)
CCIRS

(36.1)

(15.7)

3.3

(10.3)

3.9

10.6

(0.1)

–

(1.8)

(2.3)

35.4

25.7

Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of emission units held for trading
LPG swaps

–

0.2

(0.1)

–

4.5

8.2

4.9

2.3

Inventory
Emission units held for trading

Valuation of level two items carried at fair value
The fair values of level two derivatives and emission units held for trading carried at fair value are determined using discounted cash flow models. The
key inputs in the valuation models were:
Item
Valuation input
Interest rate swaps

Forward interest rate price curve

Foreign exchange swaps

Forward foreign exchange rate curves

Oil swaps

Forward oil price and foreign exchange rate curves

Electricity swaps and options

ASX forward price curve

CCIRS

Forward interest rate price curve and foreign exchange rate curves

Forward sale-and-purchase agreements of emission units held for trading

OM Financial forward curve

Emission units held for trading

OM Financial forward curve

LPG swaps

Forward propane price and foreign exchange rate curves

Level three items carried at fair value
Recurring fair value measurement

Note

Reconciliation of level three electricity swaps and options

Balance as at 1 July
– Electricity revenue
– Change in fair value of financial instruments
Total gain (loss) in profit or loss
Total gain (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income

2016
$ million

2016
$ million

2015
$ million

27.7

(6.7)

Total gain (loss)

Settlements (gain) loss

2015
$ million

Level three

23.3

24.9

(18.0)

32.0

5.3

56.9

(16.7)

4.6

(8.9)

(3.1)

Sales

(23.4)

(24.0)

Balance as at 30 June

(16.0)

27.7

The change in fair value of financial instruments disclosed above includes an unrealised loss of $18.1 million (2015: $31.5 million gain) on level
three derivatives held at balance date.
Valuation of generation assets
Refer to note 15 for the valuation and reconciliation of movements in generation assets.

Derivatives
Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges)
Electricity swaps and options (not designated as hedges)

(28.2)

(2.7)

12.2

30.4

(16.0)

27.7

2,923.5

2,628.0

Property, plant and equipment
Generation assets

Valuation of electricity swaps and options								
The valuation of electricity swaps and options in level three is based on a discounted cash flow model over the life of the agreement. The key
assumptions in the model are: the callable volumes, strike price and option fees outlined in the agreement, the internally generated forecasted
electricity price path (‘price path’), ‘day one’ gains and losses, emission credits and the discount rate. The options are deemed to be called when
the internally generated price path is higher than the strike prices after taking into account obligations relating to the specific terms of each
contract. No calling is required for the swaps and there are no option fees.
The selection of variables used within the price path requires significant judgement and, therefore, there is a range of reasonable assumptions
that could be used in estimating the price path. The key unobservable inputs driving potential changes to the price path are changes in electricity
demand, hydrology and new generation build. A material change in any one of these factors could result in a material change to the price
path and, therefore, the fair value of electricity swaps and options within level three. These factors are reviewed for reasonableness by senior
management personnel who are responsible for the price path used by the business. The price path assumes national demand growth based on
the latest available industry information and Genesis Energy’s view of growth within various sectors of the economy. Forecast hydrology is based
on 83 years of historical hydrological inflow data and new generation build assumptions are based on public announcements made by market
participants and an assessment on the wholesale electricity prices required to support new generation build. The price path also assumes the ongoing operation of New Zealand Aluminium Smelters Limited at Tiwai Point.
The key unobservable inputs, range of assumptions and third-party inputs combine to determine the wholesale electricity price path. The
wholesale electricity price paths used to value level three electricity swaps and options ranged from $65 per MWh to $109 per MWh over the
period from July 2016 to 31 December 2025 (2015: $69 per MWh to $115 per MWh over the period from July 2015 to 31 December 2025).
The discount rate used in the model ranged from 1.6 per cent to 8.3 per cent (2015: 2.9 per cent to 8.9 per cent) and the emission credit price
used ranged between $18.00 and $25.00 (2015: $7.50 and $25.00).
If the price path increased by 10 per cent while holding the discount rate consistent, this would result in the carrying value of the electricity
derivatives decreasing to $50.7 million liability (2015: $12.1 million asset). If the price path decreased by 10 per cent while holding the discount
rate constant, the carrying value would increase to $12.7 million asset (2015: $40.7 million asset).

15

Valuation of level three items carried at fair value
Valuation processes of the Group
The Group’s finance department includes a team who perform the valuations of level three fair values for generation assets and derivatives. This
team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the Chief Financial Officer
and the valuation team at least six monthly for generation assets, and monthly for derivatives. As part of these discussions, the team presents
analysis to explain the reasons for changes in fair value measurements. The Chief Financial Officer reports key changes to inputs to the Board in
the monthly finance report and any changes to the valuation methodology are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee through update papers
when any changes are anticipated or have been made due to changes in the business.

Deferred ‘day one’ gains (losses)
There is a presumption that when derivative contracts are entered into on an arm’s length basis, and no payment is received or paid on day one,
the fair value at inception would be nil. The contract price of non-exchange traded electricity derivative contracts are agreed on a bilateral basis,
the pricing for which may differ from the prevailing derived market price for a variety of reasons. In these circumstances, an adjustment is made
to bring the initial fair value of the contract to zero at inception. The adjustment is called a ‘day one’ gain (loss) and is deferred and amortised,
based on expected call volumes over the term of the contract. The ‘day one’ adjustment below is included in the level three electricity swaps and
options carrying value at balance date.
The following table details the movements and amounts of deferred ‘day one’ gains (losses) included in the fair value of level three electricity
swaps and options held at balance date:
2016
2015
$ million
$ million
Balance as at 1 July

17.1

12.9

Deferred 'day one' gains (losses) on new derivatives

63.6

15.0

Deferred 'day one' gains (losses) realised during the year

(8.0)

(10.8)

Balance as at 30 June

72.7

17.1
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26. Fair value (continued)
Items disclosed at fair value

28. Contingent assets and liabilities
Carrying value
2016
2015
$ million
$ million

Fair value
2016
2015
$ million
$ million

Level one
Retail term notes

(100.2)

(107.1)

(103.2)

(110.2)

Capital bonds

(202.6)

(202.6)

(206.2)

(204.9)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Level two
Wholesale term notes

(319.7)

(320.1)

(344.3)

(341.1)

USPP

(239.6)

(227.4)

(235.0)

(224.4)

The carrying value of all other financial assets and liabilities in the balance sheet approximates their fair values.
Valuation of wholesale term notes
The valuation of wholesale term notes is based on estimated discounted cash flow analyses using applicable market yield curves adjusted for the
Group’s credit rating. Market yield curves at balance date used in the valuation ranged from 3.0 per cent to 3.9 per cent (2015: 3.7 per cent to
5.1 per cent).
Valuation of USPP
The valuation of USPP is based on estimated discounted cash flow analyses using applicable United States market yield curves adjusted for the
Group’s credit rating. The credit-adjusted market yield curve at balance date used in the valuation was 2.5 per cent (2015: 3.6 per cent).

27. Commitments
Capital commitments

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Total capital commitments

2016
$ million

2015
$ million

1.3

1.2

–

4.3

1.3

5.5

The capital commitments disclosed above include no amounts relating to Kupe Joint Venture (2015: $1.1 million).
Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. When assets are leased under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease
payments is recognised as either a payable or a receivable in the balance sheet. Repayments are allocated between the capital and interest over
the term of the lease in order to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Receipts from operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Operating lease commitments
Where the Group is lessee
The Group leases building accommodation for its offices and land for its generation sites under operating lease arrangements. The Group also
leases vehicles and certain office equipment. These leases are of a rental nature and are on normal commercial terms and conditions. These
leases have varying lease periods of up to 20 years. In some cases, renewal rights exist with market review clauses. The Group does not have any
options to purchase the leased assets at the expiry of the lease period.
2016
2015
$ million
$ million
Not later than one year

8.4

8.4

Later than one year but not later than five years

23.9

17.0

Later than five years

31.9

13.6

Total operating lease commitments

64.2

39.0

Lease commitments are disclosed exclusive of GST.

The Group had contingent assets and liabilities at 30 June 2016 in respect of:
Land claims, law suits and other claims
The Parent acquired interests in land and leases from Electricity Corporation of New Zealand Limited (‘ECNZ’) on 1 April 1999. These interests
in land and leases may be subject to claims to the Waitangi Tribunal and may be resumed by the Crown. The Parent would expect to negotiate
with the new Maori owners for occupancy and usage rights of any sites resumed by the Crown. Certain claims have been brought to or are
pending against the Parent, ECNZ and the Crown under the Treaty of Waitangi Act 1975. Some of these claims may affect land and leases
purchased by the Parent or its subsidiaries from ECNZ. In the event that land is resumed by the Crown, the resumption would be affected by
the Crown under the Public Works Act 1981 and compensation would be payable to the Parent.
The Board of Directors cannot reasonably estimate the adverse effect (if any) on the Parent if any of the foregoing claims are ultimately resolved
against it, or any contingent or currently unknown costs or liabilities crystallise. There can be no assurances that these claims will not have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition or results of operations.
There are no other known material contingent assets or liabilities (2015: Inland Revenue Department draft Provisional Depreciation
Determination for Geothermal and Thermal Powerhouses).

29. Events occurring after balance date
Subsequent to balance date, the Parent declared a final dividend of $82.0 million (8.2 cents per share).
There have been no other significant events subsequent to balance date.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GENESIS ENERGY LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Auditor General
The Auditor-General is the auditor of Genesis Energy Limited and its subsidiaries. The Auditor-General has appointed me, Andrew Dick, using
the staff and resources of Deloitte, to carry out the audit of the financial statements of the Group, consisting of Genesis Energy Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ‘the Group’), on her behalf.

AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Group, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2016, and
the consolidated comprehensive income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, on pages 31 to 65, present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2016, and its consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the International Standards on
Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Statement on Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised)
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (AG PES 1 (Revised)) which incorporates Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of
Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
In addition to the audit we have carried out assignments in the areas of trustee reporting, scrutineer’s notice, review of the interim report and
other assurance and non-assurance services which are compatible with those independence requirements. These services have not impaired our
independence as auditor of the Group.
In addition to these assignments, principals and employees of our firm deal with the Group on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading
activities of the Group. Other than the audit and these assignments and trading activities, we have no relationship with, or interests in the Group.
Audit Materiality
We consider materiality primarily in terms of the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements of the Group that in our judgement
would make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced (the “quantitative”
materiality). In addition, we also assess whether other matters that come to our attention during the audit would in our judgement change or
influence the decisions of such a person (the “qualitative” materiality). We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work.
Based on our professional judgement, we determined the quantitative materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole to be $10 million.
This was determined with reference to a number of factors. $10 million represents 4.0 per cent of profit before tax, 0.5 per cent of total equity
and 0.5 per cent of revenue.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
KEY AUDIT MATTER

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Valuation of Generation Assets
Generation assets were revalued at 30 June 2016 as set out in note 15 of
the consolidated financial statements to $2,923.5 million.
The fair value of generation assets is estimated using an internally generated
discounted cash flow model which is prepared by management and
independently reviewed by an external party. The significant inputs used to
calculate the fair value of the generation assets are the wholesale electricity
price path, generation volumes, and the discount rate. The wholesale
electricity price path is estimated by Genesis Energy as described in note 15
of the consolidated financial statements.
The model used to estimate the wholesale electricity price path is complex
and includes a number of significant assumptions. The estimate of the
wholesale electricity price path is the most significant input in estimating the
fair values determined for the generation assets and affects the estimated
generation volumes which are also used in the fair value calculation.

Our audit procedures included assessing the key inputs to the model
used to estimate the fair value of the generation assets. Our procedures
which included the use of our internal valuation experts were primarily
focused on evaluating the process undertaken by Genesis Energy in
forecasting the wholesale electricity price path and assessing whether
the forecast was consistent with internal and external data.
We assessed the professional competence of the Genesis Energy
valuers involved in the modelling of the electricity price path and
valuation of the generation assets.
We also compared budgeted performance information from prior periods
to historical data to assess the accuracy of the forecasting process.
We have assessed the competence, independence and objectivity of
the external party undertaking the review.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Valuation of Generation Assets (continued)
Changes to the forecast of the wholesale electricity price path could
significantly change the estimated fair value of the generation assets.
The treatment of the gains on revaluation estimated by Genesis Energy
for specific assets are described in note 15 of the consolidated financial
statements.
We included the valuation of generation assets as a key audit matter due
to the level of judgement required in forecasting the wholesale electricity
price path.

Valuation of Electricity Derivatives and Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps
The Group’s activities expose it to electricity and gas market price, oil
price, currency and interest rate risk which are managed using derivative
financial instruments. At 30 June 2016 derivative assets totalled $72.9
million and derivative liabilities were $84.4 million as set out in note 24 of
the consolidated financial statements.
The valuations of the oil swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign exchange
swaps and options, and some electricity derivatives which are prepared by
Genesis Energy valuers are based primarily on observable inputs and are
measured using standard valuation techniques.
Cross-currency interest rate swaps and certain electricity swaps and
options are also valued using primarily observable inputs but require
more complex valuation models. Additionally, some electricity swaps and
options are valued using the wholesale electricity price path forecast by
Genesis Energy valuers. As explained in the ‘Valuation of Generation
Assets’ section above, the wholesale electricity price path forecast
requires significant judgement.
We have included the valuation of electricity derivatives and cross
currency interest rate swaps as a key audit matter due to the complexity
associated with their valuation and the judgement involved in evaluating
the inputs to the electricity derivative valuation models.
Kupe Reserves Estimate
The Group has a 31 per cent interest in the Kupe Joint Venture. At 30
June 2016 oil and gas assets held by the Group totalled $267.5 million as
set out in note 16 of the consolidated financial statements.
The estimation of the oil and gas reserves has a pervasive impact on the
financial statements through depletion as the oil and gas is extracted and
on impairment considerations.
The rate of depletion of oil and gas assets is based on the quantity of oil
and gas extracted during the period compared to the proven reserves
to which the assets relate. Proven reserves are the estimated quantities
of oil and gas which geological and engineering data demonstrate with
reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known
reservoirs, under existing economic and operating conditions.
Estimating the proven reserves that are used to consider impairment and
to calculate depletion requires significant expertise and judgement as oil
and gas reserves cannot be directly examined.
Proven reserves are estimated based on an indirect technique
and estimates can change over time as explained in note 16 of the
consolidated financial statements.
Proven reserves were reviewed during the year ended 30 June 2016.
This was performed by Genesis Energy’s external specialist based on
information provided by the Kupe Joint Venture Operator. The method is
detailed in note 16 of the consolidated financial statements.
We have included the estimate of Kupe reserves as a key audit matter due
to the judgement in estimating the quantities of oil and gas in the reservoirs
and the impact that these estimates have on the depletion expense, the
carrying value of the oil and gas assets and on impairment considerations.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTERS

We have compared the forecast wholesale electricity price path with
externally derived data. We also evaluated the assumptions used in
forecasting the electricity price path to determine whether they
were consistent with assumptions used across the business, including
management budgets and valuations of other assets including
certain electricity derivatives.
We performed sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions applied in
determining the fair value of the generation assets and considered the
adequacy of the Group’s disclosures.
We have found the assumptions and resulting valuation to be reasonable.
We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls related
to the recording and valuation of electricity derivative transactions.
We challenged key assumptions applied by management and agreed
underlying data to the contract terms on a sample basis. We have
independently recalculated the fair value of a sample of electricity
derivatives.
Our internal valuation experts have evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology applied in valuation models for the electricity derivatives.
We also performed audit work on the wholesale electricity price
path as explained above under the section entitled ‘Valuation of
Generation Assets’.
Our internal valuation experts have independently recalculated the
value of a sample of cross-currency interest rate swaps using specialist
treasury management software.
We have found the assumptions and resulting valuations to be reasonable.

We evaluated the process undertaken by Genesis Energy’s external
specialist based on information provided by the Kupe Joint Venture
Operator to estimate the proven reserves and the process undertaken
by Genesis Energy to assess indicators of impairment and to calculate
the annual depletion of oil and gas assets.
We have evaluated the professional competence of the external
specialist who performed the assessment and reviewed the
assumptions that the specialist used in estimating the proven reserves
to ensure they were consistent with our understanding.
We have considered the final oil and gas reserves estimation report
prepared by Genesis Energy’s external specialist in light of our
understanding of the business.
We obtained confirmation of the quantities of oil and gas extracted
during the period from the component auditor of the Kupe Joint
Venture and reviewed Genesis Energy’s calculation of the depletion
rate for the oil and gas assets.
We consider that the reserve estimate is reasonable for use in the
calculation of depletion expense and for performing impairment
testing on the oil and gas assets.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the Annual Report that
accompanies the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it
becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the other information, if we conclude that
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the directors.
Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible on behalf of the entity for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with NZ IFRS and IFRS, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
The Directors are also responsible for the publication of the consolidated financial statements, whether in printed or electronic form.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our responsibility arises from section 15
of the Public Audit Act 2001. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
>> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
>> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
>> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.
>> Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the Directors and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
>> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
>> Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
>> We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements. Also, we did not evaluate the
security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial statements.
>> We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
>> We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
>> From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Andrew Dick.

Corporate Governance
This section of the Annual Report
provides an overview of Genesis Energy’s
corporate governance policies, practices
and processes adopted and followed by
the Board of Directors (‘Board’).
Governance framework and compliance
Genesis Energy Limited (‘Genesis Energy’ or
‘the Company’) is a company incorporated
in New Zealand under the Companies Act
1993 (NZ) (‘Companies Act’), whose fully
paid ordinary shares (‘Shares’) are listed
on the NZX Main Board and Australian
stock exchanges (‘NZX’ and ‘ASX’). In
New Zealand, the Company is listed with a
‘non-standard’ (NS) designation. In the year
in review, Genesis Energy changed listing
categories on the ASX from a standard listing
to an ASX Foreign Exempt Listing, effective
from 20 January 2016.
The Company’s corporate governance
framework takes into consideration
contemporary standards in New Zealand
and Australia, incorporating the NZX
Corporate Governance Best Practice Code
(‘NZX Code’), the third edition of the ASX
Corporate Governance Council Principles
and Recommendations (2014) (‘ASX
Principles’) and the New Zealand Financial
Markets Authority Corporate Governance
in New Zealand Principles and Guidelines
(2014) (‘FMA Guidelines’).
The Board considers that the corporate
governance practices it adopted and followed
in FY2016 do not differ materially from
those in the NZX Code, the ASX Principles
and the FMA Guidelines.
Corporate governance information
and Genesis Energy’s website
For more detailed information on
Genesis Energy’s corporate governance
practices, refer to the Investor Centre on
the Company’s website www.genesisenergy.
co.nz/governance to view Genesis Energy’s
Corporate Governance Statement.
The following corporate governance
documents referred to in this section of
the Annual Report are also available in the
Investor Centre on Genesis Energy’s website
at www.genesisenergy.co.nz/governance:
• Genesis Energy’s Constitution
• Board Charter
• Audit and Risk Committee Charter
• Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee Charter
• Nominations Committee Charter

•
•
•
•
•
•

Code of Conduct and Ethics
Diversity and Inclusion Policy
Trading in Company Securities Policy
Market Disclosure Policy
Audit Independence Policy
Investor Communication Policy

Board and Management roles
and responsibilities
Board’s role and key responsibilities
and delegation to Management
The Genesis Energy Board is responsible for the
proper direction and control of the affairs and
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The Board recognises that its primary role is
to act in a manner that Directors believe is in
the best interests of the Company, thereby
creating long-term value for shareholders
while having regard to the interests of its
employees and other stakeholders.
The Constitution provides that the affairs of
the Company are to be managed by and/or
under the supervision of the Board.
The Board Charter records the Board’s
commitment to achieving best-practice
corporate governance and describes the
specific responsibilities, values, principles and
practices that underpin the role of Director
and those that are delegated formally to
Management. The Board regularly reviews
the Board Charter and the delegations to the
Chief Executive, specifically, the Company’s
Delegations of Authority Policy.
Board structure and composition
The Company’s Constitution and the Board
Charter set out the Board’s composition,
which is as follows:
• A minimum of three Directors
• A maximum of nine Directors
• A majority of independent non-executive
Directors, with a minimum of two
Directors who will ordinarily be resident
in New Zealand.
A copy of the Constitution and Board
Charter can be accessed at www.
genesisenergy.co.nz/governance-documents
Director Independence
All of the Directors are considered to be
‘independent’ Directors under the NZX
Listing Rules, the ASX Listing Rules, the
ASX Principles and the FMA Guidelines,
which in summary means that they are not
substantial shareholders and they are free
of any business or other relationships that
would materially interfere with, or could
reasonably be seen to materially interfere
with, the independent exercise of their

judgement. Materiality is assessed on a caseby-case basis and is based on qualitative and
quantitative factors, including assessing the
strategic importance, nature and value of
any relationship. The names of the current
Directors together with details of the
independence status of each, are set out at
pages 26 and 27.
The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
are exercised by different persons. The
Chairman and Deputy Chair of Genesis
Energy are appointed by the Board from
the independent Directors, with the
Chairman’s appointment approved (due to
the Company’s status as a Mixed Ownership
Company as defined by the Public Finance
Act 19891) by the Minister of Finance.
Nomination and appointment of Directors
All Directors are elected by the Company’s
shareholders, with rotation and retirement
determined by the Constitution. The
Board may appoint Directors to fill casual
vacancies. Directors appointed to fill casual
vacancies are required to retire and stand
for election at the first Annual Shareholder
Meeting after their appointment.
The Nominations Committee (discussed in
more detail on page 71) recommends to the
Board potential candidates for appointment
as Directors.
Director induction and access to information
and advice
Genesis Energy undertakes appropriate
pre-appointment checks before appointing a
Director, or putting forward to shareholders
a candidate for election as a Director. This
includes background checks on character,
education, employment experience, criminal
history and bankruptcy to assess suitability.
There are formal letters of appointment
in place with all non-executive Directors,
setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointments.
New Directors are provided with an
induction pack and participate in an induction
programme designed to provide an overview
of Genesis Energy, its operations and the
environment and markets in which the
Company operates.
All Directors have access to the advice and
assistance of the Company Secretary on
the Board’s affairs and governance matters.
In addition, all Directors may access such
information and seek such independent advice
as they individually or collectively consider
necessary to fulfil their responsibilities.

On behalf of the Auditor-General
Auckland, New Zealand
23 August 2016

1 The Public Finance Act 1989 and the Company’s Constitution provide that Her Majesty the Queen in right of New Zealand must hold at least 51 per cent of the shares of
the Company.
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Directors’ skills, experience and
professional development
The Board is structured so that its
composition continues to:
• Include Directors who, collectively, have
a mix of skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity to meet and discharge the
Board’s responsibilities
• Retain a balance between long-serving
Directors, with experience and knowledge
of the energy sector and the Genesis
Energy business and history, and new
Directors, who bring fresh perspectives
and insight.
During its most recent review, the Board
identified the mix of skills and experience
among Directors that it currently seeks
to maintain and develop. These are
summarised in the Directors’ Skills Matrix
set out in Genesis Energy’s Corporate
Governance Statement.

The Board is committed to continued
professional development to enable Directors
to maintain the knowledge and skill set
required for the office of director of an issuer,
and to provide Directors with knowledge
specific to the energy industry, and new
regulatory and governance practices.

and one-on-one discussions between the
Chairman and individual Directors. The
Board met to consider the survey results and
evaluation findings, and identified areas for
improvement, with a programme of actions
in place to further strengthen the Board and
the Committees.

Board appraisal
Directors carry out an annual performance
review and evaluation of the Board, its
charter, committees and the Chairman,
with Directors’ views sought and discussed
on issues relating to Board processes,
efficiency and effectiveness. The Board’s
Nominations Committee is responsible for
recommending to the Board, for its approval,
an annual evaluation process of the Board,
its Committees and individual Directors. The
self-review and evaluation framework for
FY2016 consisted of online questionnaires
generated from the Institute of Directors

Board meetings and attendance
The Board schedules a minimum of 10
meetings of Directors each year, at which
Directors receive written reports and
presentations from the Chief Executive
and senior management, providing monthly
monitoring, addressing and updating on
strategy and recommending matters for
Board approval. Additional meetings are
called as required.
Diagram 1 (below) shows attendance at Board
and Committee meetings during the year in
review, including the dates of appointment
and qualifications of each Director:

Diagram 1 – Director details and attendance at meetings

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTOR1

APPOINTED

QUALIFICATIONS

Total meetings:

BOARD2

MARCH 2016
HEALTH AND
CEO
RETAIL BOND
HUMAN
AUDIT
AND RISK RESOURCES AND NOMINATIONS OVERSIGHT RECRUITMENT SAFETY SITE
VISITS
COMMITTEE
COMMITTEE
COMMITTEE REM COMMITTEE COMMITTEE

14

4

4

7

14

1

4

7

12

4

Dame
Jenny Shipley

01 Nov 2009 DNZM

Joanna Perry

01 May 2007

John Dell

01 May 2010 BCom (Hons), CA

12

4

John Leuchars

16 July 2012

ME, BCA, FIPENZ

13

4

Graeme Milne

01 May 2009

BTech (Biotech)
(Hons)

14

Rukumoana
Schaafhausen

01 May 2010 LLB

14

4

Mark Cross

24 June 2014 BBS, CA

13

4

Douglas McKay

BA, AMP
24 June 2014
(Harvard)

MA Econ
(Cantab), FCA

13

5
4

4

6

3

6

3

4

1

3

4

3

3

1

3

6

3

1

3

1

3

6

3

6

4
4

1 All Directors listed are independent Directors.
2 The number of Board meetings also includes strategy workshops. In addition, Directors participated in a number of stakeholder and investor meetings
throughout FY2016.

For a copy of the corporate
governance documents
mentioned on these pages,
visit www.genesisenergy.co.nz/
governance-documents

Board Committees
Board Committee governance
The Board has three standing Committees to
assist in carrying out its responsibilities. The
Board establishes other committees from
time to time to deal with projects relating
to Genesis Energy’s various activities. The
Board Committees play a crucial part in the
governance framework. Details of the FY2016
membership, composition and responsibilities
of each Board Committee are set out in
Diagram 2 (below). Each Committee has
at least three members, all of whom are
non-executive and independent Directors.

integrity and ethical conduct in day-today behaviour and decision-making at the
Company. The Board has adopted a Code
of Conduct and Ethics, which is a formal
statement acknowledging this commitment.
The Code of Conduct and Ethics is
supported by other existing Company policy
and standards that address the following:
Compliance, Protected Disclosures,
Privacy, Conflicts of Interest, Harassment
Prevention, Travel and Business Expenditure
and Gifts, Trading in Company Securities,
Health and Safety, Remuneration, Diversity
and Inclusion, and Fraud.

Ethical standards and key governance policies

Trading in Company Securities Policy
The Board has adopted a Trading in
Company Securities Policy detailing the
Company’s guidance and rules for trading in
Genesis Energy securities on the NZX and
ASX, and trading in New Zealand electricity
futures listed on the ASX. The policy applies to
Directors, officers, employees and contractors
and is additional to the legal prohibitions on
insider trading in New Zealand and Australia,
in acknowledgement that such individuals are
likely to, at certain times, have knowledge of
and access to inside information.

Code of Conduct and Ethics
Genesis Energy expects its Directors, senior
managers, employees and contractors to
maintain the highest standards of honesty,

Conflicts of interest
The principles that govern the management
of conflicts of interest are addressed in a
number of governance documents,

The Audit and Risk Committee
Consistent with best practice, the Audit and
Risk Committee, comprising five members,
consists of only non-executive Directors,
all of whom are independent. At least one
Director is a qualified accountant and the
Committee is chaired by an independent
Director, who is not the Chairman of the
Board. For further details on this Committee’s
function and responsibilities, refer to the Audit
and Risk Committee Charter.

specifically, the Genesis Energy Constitution,
the Board Charter, the Code of Conduct and
Ethics and the Conflicts of Interest Policy.
Collectively these policies provide guidance
to both Directors and employees as to when
a conflict of interest may arise and sets out
the procedures for managing a conflict of
interest. It is expected that Directors will be
sensitive to actual and perceived conflicts
of interest that may occur and will have
constant consideration of this issue.
Diversity and Inclusion Policy and
gender composition
Genesis Energy’s Diversity and Inclusion
Policy records the Company’s commitment
to an inclusive workplace that embraces and
promotes diversity through a number of
initiatives including a focus on equal opportunity.
The Company has sought to establish
measurable objectives for achieving gender
diversity and its annual assessment of its
diversity objectives for FY2016 and the
Company’s progress towards achieving these
objectives are set out in Diagram 3 on page 72.
As at 30 June 2016, in relation to
Genesis Energy’s:
• Board of Directors, three out of eight
Directors were women (this is the
same as FY2015)
• Officers2, two out of eight positions
were held by women (this is the same
as FY2015)

Diagram 2 – Board Committees

Genesis Energy
Board of Directors

Human Resources and
Remuneration Committee
Doug McKay (Chairman),
John Dell, Dame Jenny Shipley
The principal purpose of the Human
Resources and Remuneration
Committee is to assist the Board in
the discharge of its responsibilities and
oversight in relation to:
The remuneration and performance of
the Chief Executive and senior
executives
The remuneration of Directors
The Company’s human resources
strategy and policy.
For further details, see the Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee Charter

Audit and Risk Committee
Joanna Perry (Chairman),
John Dell, John Leuchars,
Rukumoana Schaafhausen, Mark Cross

The principal purpose of the Audit and
Risk Committee is to assist the Board in
the proper and efficient discharge of its
responsibilities in relation to:
The integrity of external financial
reporting prepared by Management
Financial management
Internal control systems
Accounting policy and practice
Appointment and performance of
internal and external auditors
Related-party transactions
The risk-management framework
and the monitoring of compliance
within that framework.

Nominations Committee
Dame Jenny Shipley (Chairman),
Joanna Perry, Graeme Milne

The purpose of the Nominations
Committee is to assist the Board in
discharging its responsibilities in relation to:
Board succession planning
Monitoring the appropriate balance
of skills, experience, independence
and knowledge of the Board
Identifying suitable prospective
Directors for shareholder selection
The annual Board self-review process
Director induction and development.
For further details, see the Nominations
Committee Charter

For further details, see the Audit and Risk
Committee Charter

2 The term ‘Officer’ is defined in the NZX Listing Rules and aligned to the interpretation given under the Financial Markets Conduct Act (relating to the definition of Senior
Manager), i.e., a person, however designated, who is concerned or takes part in the management of the public issuer’s business. Genesis Energy deems this to be the Chief
Executive and the Chief Executive’s direct reports.
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Diagram 3 – FY2016 measurable objectives for diversity
OBJECTIVE

PROGRESS AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

Sustain focus on diversity
metrics and use insights to
steer diversity initiatives

Diversity metrics are analysed and reported quarterly. Insights gained from data have driven the following initiatives:
• Analysis of gender pay parity
• Implementation of a process and mechanism to capture ethnicity data
• Pilot of an internal network for women leaders
• Greater education around unconscious bias
• Inclusion of diversity measures within the Company-wide employee survey

Build understanding of
cultural diversity

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Develop diverse talent pools

• Development of a mechanism and process to better understand and track the ethnic diversity of
Genesis Energy’s workforce
• Initiation of an engaging internal and external campaign to promote Māori Language Week
• Ongoing promotion of the Company’s cultural calendar to recognise different cultural events which are
important to Genesis Energy’s employees
• Consolidate Genesis Energy’s partnership with Global Women, became a major partner of the Champions
of Change Programme and an active member of the steering committee for the Māori and Pasifika Tupu
Toa Corporate Pathways programme
• Sponsored a senior leader on the Global Women’s Breakthrough Programme and several women on the
Global Women Activation Series
• Launched Genesis Energy’s flagship leadership development programme with a cross-section of 18 participants
• Implemented two separate internship programmes, one through the University of Auckland and one
through the local Huntly community, as well as a mentoring programme for students from Te Wharekura
o Rākaumangamanga
• Launched the Internal Women’s Network to better understand issues facing Genesis Energy’s female
leaders, with the focus on building internal support, confidence and capability

Engaging with investors and stakeholders
Approach to investor relations
Genesis Energy is committed to providing
a high standard of communication to its
investors and other stakeholders and believes
effective communication is achieved by
providing equal access to accurate and
complete information. Genesis Energy
maintains an ongoing programme aimed
at tailoring the Company’s investor
communications in a way that is most useful
to its investors.
The Investor Communication Policy details
the steps that the Company will take
to communicate with its investors. The
aim of Genesis Energy’s communication
strategy is to enable investors to engage
with the Company in an informed manner
and to make informed assessments of the
Company’s value and prospects.
Genesis Energy’s website is used actively to
complement the official release of material
information to the market, enabling broader
access to Company information by investors
and stakeholders. The Company’s website
has copies of all presentations, media
releases and reports.
Genesis Energy encourages investors
to refer to the Investor Centre at
www.genesisenergy.co.nz/investor-centre.
Approach to stakeholders
Genesis Energy recognises that it has a range
of stakeholders, including the communities
and rohe in which it operates its generation
assets and business activities, its employees
and customers, investors, suppliers and
creditors, and local and central government
regulatory bodies and non-governmental

organisations with which it interacts. In
addition to its focus on the importance of its
relationships with its investors, the Board has
adopted and promoted a range of policies
and practices, which reflect the respect it
holds for its stakeholders and the value that
good relationships with stakeholders delivers
to the Company and its shareholders.
Market Disclosure Policy
Genesis Energy’s Market Disclosure Policy,
internal continuous disclosure procedures
and Market Disclosure Committee are used
to facilitate the timely notification to the
market, shareholders and investors of any
material information relating to its business,
financial performance or its strategy,
consistent with the best-practice continuous
disclosure requirements of the NZX and ASX.
Audit and risk practices
External Audit and Audit Independence Policy
Pursuant to the Public Audit Act 2001,
the Auditor-General is the auditor of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
‘Group’). The Auditor-General has appointed
Andrew Dick of Deloitte to carry out the
FY2016 audit on her behalf. The NZX Listing
Rules require rotation of the lead audit
partner at least every five years and this
requirement is reflected in Genesis Energy’s
Audit Independence Policy. The purpose of
the Audit Independence Policy is to ensure
that audit independence is maintained,
both in fact and appearance, so that the
Company’s external financial reporting is
both reliable and credible.

Internal Audit
Genesis Energy outsources its internal audit
function, which assists in the monitoring of
the Company’s internal control systems and
risk management. Internal audit operates both
with and independently from Management
and reports its findings directly to the Audit
and Risk Committee. The Audit and Risk
Committee reviews the internal audit plan
annually and internal audit reports are made
available to the external auditor. Ernst & Young
is the Company’s internal auditor.
Approach to risk management
The identification and effective management
of the Company’s risks are priorities of
the Board. The Board is responsible for
overseeing and approving risk management
strategy, appetite and policies, as well
as ensuring that effective audit, risk
management and compliance systems are in
place. The Audit and Risk Committee assists
the Board in fulfilling these responsibilities.
The Company’s risk management framework
integrates risk management into the Company’s
operations, formalises risk management
as part of the Company’s internal control
and corporate governance arrangements,
and provides a consistent and structured
way to manage risk across the Company.
The framework is supported by a number
of policies appropriate for the Company’s
business, including a Market Trading Risk Policy,
Credit Risk Policy, Treasury Management
Policy, Compliance Policy and Delegations
of Authority Policy. The Audit and Risk
Committee has reviewed the Company’s
risk-management framework and policy,
and is satisfied that it continues to be sound.

Remuneration Report
Directors’ fees
Directors are remunerated in the form of
Directors’ fees, approved by shareholders,
including a higher level of fees for the
Chairman and Deputy Chairman to reflect
the additional time and responsibilities that
these positions involve.
An additional pool of fees, approved by
shareholders for Committee work, is
allocated in respect of membership of the
various Board Committees.
No Director of Genesis Energy is entitled
to any remuneration from the Company
other than by way of Directors’ fees and
the reasonable reimbursement of travelling,
accommodation and other expenses
incurred in the course of performing duties
or exercising their role as a Director. Nonexecutive Directors do not participate in any
Company share or option plan.
The following people held office as Directors
during the year to 30 June 2016 and
received the following remuneration during
the period:

REMUNERATION PAID 1

Dame Jenny Shipley
(Chairman)

$156,000

Joanna Perry
(Deputy Chairman)

$118,000

Graeme Milne

$84,000

John Dell

$92,007

John Leuchars

$88,005

Rukumoana Schaafhausen

$88,005

Mark Cross

$88,005

Douglas McKay

$87,005

1 Directors’ fees exclude both GST and reimbursed
costs directly associated with carrying out their
duties – for example, travel.

No additional remuneration for
subsidiary directors
No Director of a subsidiary company
of the Genesis Energy Group (a list of
subsidiary companies and Directors is set
out in the Statutory Disclosures at page
76) received any remuneration or other
benefits during the period in relation to their
duties as Directors of a subsidiary company,
other than the benefit of an indemnity

from Genesis Energy and the benefit of
insurance cover in respect of all liabilities to
persons (other than the Company and the
subsidiaries or related body corporate), to
the extent permitted by law, which arise out
of the performance of their normal duties
as Directors, unless the liability relates to
conduct involving a lack of good faith.
Executive remuneration approach – general
Genesis Energy is committed to a fair
and reasonable remuneration framework
for its executives. Genesis Energy’s total
remuneration policy for its executives
provides the opportunity for them to be paid,
where individual and Company performance
merits, in the median-to-upper quartile
for equivalent market-matched roles in the
private sector. In determining an executive’s
total remuneration, external benchmarking is
undertaken by up to two globally recognised,
locally based remuneration advisors to
ensure comparability and competitiveness,
along with consideration of the individual’s
performance, skills, expertise and experience.
Performance evaluations of the Chief
Executive and each senior executive took
place during FY2016 .

Total executive remuneration is made up of three components: fixed remuneration, short-term performance incentives and an executive
long-term incentive plan. Each component is explored in more detail below:
FIXED
REMUNERATION

Fixed remuneration consists of base salary and benefits (superannuation and insurances). Genesis Energy’s policy is to pay fixed
remuneration for executives based on the market median in the private sector.

SHORT-TERM
PERFORMANCE
INCENTIVES

Short-term performance incentives are at-risk payments aligned to annual Company performance score-cards and individual
measures for eligible executives. The score-cards define strategically aligned objectives and measures. These measures are reviewed
annually and link strongly to Genesis Energy’s strategic direction. The measures normally include measures of financial performance,
customer retention and growth, operational excellence, and people and safety. Each short-term performance incentive
remuneration target is expressed as a percentage of base salary and is set and evaluated annually. The score-cards percentages vary
annually to ensure they drive the right behaviours and can account for between 35 per cent and 50 per cent of the short-term
performance incentive. Individual targets account for the remaining percentages.

KIWISAVER

All employees are eligible to contribute and receive matching Company contributions of 4 per cent of gross taxable earnings,
including on short-term incentives.

EXECUTIVE
LONG-TERM
INCENTIVE
PLAN

The Company implemented an executive long-term incentive plan (‘Executive LTI Plan’) on listing in 2014. The Executive LTI Plan is
designed to enhance the alignment between shareholders and those executives most able to influence the financial results of the Company.
The Board has an absolute discretion to invite executives to participate in the Executive LTI Plan. Under the Executive LTI Plan,
the participants purchase shares funded by interest-free loans from the Company, with the shares held on trust by the trustee for
those participating executives until the end of a three-year period. The offer price is established at market value at the time of the offer.
Provided the Board determines that the performance criteria are met and participants remain employed with the Company throughout
the three-year measurement period, a cash bonus will be paid to meet the repayment of the loan, and legal title in the shares will be
transferred to the participants. Shares that do not vest will be forfeited and proceeds used to repay the interest-free loan.
The performance criteria under the Executive LTI Plan is as follows:
• The requirement that the Company must achieve a positive absolute total shareholder return over the measurement period of
three years
• The Company’s performance relative to the performance of the benchmark peer group is measured, with a sliding scale to apply
for the number of shares to vest.
If the Company’s total shareholder return over the measurement period exceeds the 50th percentile of total shareholder return of the
benchmark peer group, 50 per cent of a participant’s shares will vest. All of a participant’s shares will vest if the Company’s total shareholder
return meets or exceeds the 75th percentile of the benchmark peer group, with vesting on a straight-line basis between these two points.
In the event that the total shareholder return performance in absolute terms is less than zero or, in relative terms, does not meet the peer
group’s relative total shareholder return hurdle (being the 50th percentile total shareholder return of the benchmark peer group), or if the
participant ceases to be employed by the Company other than for a qualifying reason, the shares will be forfeited to the trustee without
compensation and the relevant executive will receive no benefits under the plan. Where the total shareholder return exceeds the 50th
percentile of the benchmark peer group but is below the 75th percentile, those shares which have not vested will be forfeited to the trustee
without compensation. Where any shares are forfeited to the trustee without compensation, the obligations of the participant with respect
to the interest-free loan provided for the acquisition of the forfeited shares will be assumed by the trustee, in consideration for the transfer
of the relevant shares to the trustee. The trustee may then sell those shares, hold them on trust for future allocations under the Executive
LTI Plan, or transfer them to the Company pursuant to a put option granted by the Company. No shares will vest if the Company’s total
shareholder return over the measurement period is less than the 50th percentile total shareholder return of the benchmark peer group.

Statutory Disclosures

Fixed Remuneration

$1,465,895.15

$150,000.00

Short-Term Incentive

$709,246.22(1)

N/A

Executive Long-Term Incentive

N/A

The cost of 101,827 ordinary shares in the
Company acquired under the Executive LTI
Plan on 13 May 2016 was $188,136

KiwiSaver

$94,143.48

$5,903.28

Other Payments

$178,447.00

$100,000.00

1 A short-term incentive payment of $332,869.00
was made to the Chief Executive in August 2015 in
relation to performance for FY2015, and $376,377.22
was paid in relation to performance for FY2016.

2 Excludes Executive LTI Plan entitlements.

3 This payment was made to the new Chief Executive
in recognition of him extinguishing rights to certain
share entitlements in his previous employment.

(3)

Remuneration of employees earning over $100,000 in the year ending 30 June 2016
There were 256 Genesis Energy employees (or former employees) who received remuneration and benefits in excess of $100,000 (not
including Directors) in their capacity as employees during the year ended 30 June 2016, as set out in Diagram 4 (below).

REMUNERATION AMOUNT

EMPLOYEES

REMUNERATION AMOUNT

EMPLOYEES

$2,441,000 – $2,450,000

1

$221,000 – $230,000

1

$761,000 – $770,000

1

$211,000 – $220,000

3

$521,000 – $530,000

1

$201,000 – $210,000

6

$491,000 – $500,000

1

$191,000 – $200,000

3

$461,000 – $470,000

2

$181,000 – $190,000

5

$451,000 – $460,000

1

$171000 – $180,000

5

$441,000 – $450,000

1

$161,000 – $170000

10

$321,000 – $330,000

1

$151000 – $160,000

21

$301,000 – $310,000

1

$141,000 – $150,000

23

$261,000 – $270,000

3

$131,000 – $140,000

24

$251,000 – $260,000

1

$121,000 – $130,000

42

$241,000 – $250,000

3

$111,000 – $120,000
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COMPANY
Seniors Money International Limited

Director

Chair

China Construction Bank
(New Zealand) Limited

Director and Shareholder Leuchars Holdings Limited

Chair

Transition Advisory Board for CERA (2)

Director and Shareholder Nuf Superannuation Pty Limited

Chair

Oravida NZ Limited

Chair

Oravida Waters Limited

Director and Shareholder Jenny Shipley New Zealand Limited
Member

Canterbury Earthquake Recovery Authority
Review Panel (2)

Trustee

Heart Health Research Trust

Trustee

Shipley Family Trust

Chairman

Investment Advisory Panel of Primary
Growth Partnership (2)

Chair

IFRS Advisory Council

Director

Trade Me Group Limited

Director

Sport New Zealand

Director and Shareholder JMGP Limited

Member

Saint Kentigern Trust Board Subcommittee

Chair and Shareholder

MFL Mutual Fund Limited (1)

Chair and Shareholder

Superannuation Investments Limited (1)

Chair

Milford Asset Management Limited (1)

Chair and Shareholder

Milford Asset Management Limited and
subsidiaries (1)

Director and Shareholder Virsae Group Limited
Director and Shareholder Emcee Squared Limited (name change)
Director and Shareholder Aspect Productivity Technology Limited
Director and Shareholder Alpha Investment Partners Limited
Argosy Property Limited

Director

Partners Life Holding Limited

Triathlon New Zealand Incorporated

Director

Partners Life Limited

Director

Z Energy (1)

Member

National Health Committee (2)

Trustee

Triathlon Youth Foundation New Zealand

Chairman

New Zealand Pharmaceuticals Limited (2)

Trustee

The Cross Family Trust

Chairman

Synlait Milk Limited

Chairman

Eden Park Trust Board

Chairman

Terracare Fertilisers Limited

Chairman

Bank of New Zealand and subsidiaries

Chairman

Johne’s Disease Research Limited

Director

IAG New Zealand Limited and subsidiaries

Chairman

Rural Broadband Initiative National Advisory
Committee (2)

Director

Wymac Consulting Limited

Director

Ryman Healthcare Limited

Director

Chartered Accountants Australia
New Zealand (2)

Director

National Australia Bank (1)

Director

Regulatory Board of New Zealand Institute
of Chartered Accountants (NZICA) (2)

Director

Alliance Group Limited

Director

Elviti Holdings Limited (1)

Member

Massey University School of Engineering
Advanced Technology Advisory Board

This includes fixed remuneration, employer KiwiSaver contributions, short-term performance payments, settlement payments and redundancy payments for all
permanent employees.

Partner

G.R. & J.A Milne

Trustee

Rockhaven Trust

Genesis Energy Employee Share Scheme
Genesis Energy implemented the Genesis Energy Employee Share Scheme (‘Scheme’) in 2014. The Scheme enables eligible employees to acquire
shares in the Company and, if they continue to be employed after a three-year qualification period, they will be entitled to receive one award share
for every two shares purchased in the first year of the qualification period and still owned at the end of the three-year qualification period.
The Scheme has a maximum contribution rate of $5,000 per annum and does not have any performance criteria, with employees entitled
to award shares if they continue to be employed and still own the shares at the end of the qualification period. For the year under review,
39.6 per cent of employees participated in the Scheme.

Director

Regional Facilities Auckland Limited

Executive Member

Waikato-Tainui Te Kauhanganui Incorporated,
the trustee of the Waikato Raupatu Lands
Trust and Waikato Raupatu River Trust

15

Non-Executive Director Milmeq Limited

Director

Farmers Mutual Group

Employees who are included but who are no longer at Genesis Energy as at 30 June 2016

Wellington Gateway General Partner
No. 2 Limited

Director

Director

256

Director

Rowing New Zealand

Pro-Form Ltd Advisory Board (1)

Total employees earning $100,000+

Wellington Gateway General Partner
No. 1 Limited

Director

Rimanui Farms Limited

52

Director

Kiwi Property Group Limited

Chairman

$100,000 – $110,000

Director and Shareholder Nuf Pty Limited

Director

Chairman

2

KiwiRail Holdings Limited – trading as KiwiRail

Director and Shareholder Nuf Investments Pty Limited

Executive Board Member New Zealand China Council

Pacific T and R Limited

$231,000 – $240,000

COMPANY

Chair

Chairman

Graeme Milne

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Diagram 4 – Remuneration of employees

DIRECTOR POSITION

John Leuchars

$255,903.28(2)

Mark Cross

$2,447,731.85

Interests register entries
In accordance with section 211(1)(e) of the Companies Act,
particulars of the entries in the Interests Register of Genesis Energy
made during the accounting period are as set out in the table below:

Director

Te Waharoa Investments Limited

Director

Schaafhausen Inc Limited

1 Entries added by notices given by Directors during the year ended 30 June 2016.
2 Entries removed by notices given by Directors during the year ended 30 June 2016.

Douglas McKay

Total Remuneration

Disclosures of interest
The general disclosures of interest made by Directors of Genesis Energy,
pursuant to section 140(2) of the Companies Act 1993, are shown
below. There were no declarations of interest made pursuant to
section 140(1) of the Companies Act 1993, entered in the Interests
Register of Genesis Energy or its subsidiary companies.

Director and Shareholder Tourism Transport Limited

John Dell – resigned 29 July 2016

MARC ENGLAND
(2 MAY 2016 – 30 JUNE 2016)

Jenny Shipley (Chairman)

ALBERT BRANTLEY
(1 JUNE 2015 – 29 APRIL 2016)

Joanna Perry (Deputy Chairman)

Chief Executive remuneration
As noted in this FY2016 Annual Report, Marc England commenced as the Company’s Chief Executive on 2 May 2016, taking over from
Albert Brantley who completed his tenure with the Company on 29 April 2016. The Chief Executive remuneration detail provided below,
relates to payments made to Albert Brantley and Marc England during FY2016:

Rukumoana
Schaafhausen
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Member

Eden Park Trust Board (2)

Managing Director and
Shareholder

Japad Trading Limited

Managing Director and
Shareholder

Japad Limited

Managing Director and
Shareholder

Japad Long Term Investments Limited

Non-executive Director

Higgins Group Holdings Limited

Non-executive Director

Unimarket Holdings Limited

Non-executive Director

EGS Investments Limited and its subsidiaries

Non-executive Director

Viridian Glass GP Limited

Trustee

Japad Family Trust

Trustee

Japad Investment Trust

Trustee

The Otago Trust

Trustee

Cuthby Trust

Trustee

Newcastle Trust

Investor

Ethereum Blockchain Technology (1)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Directors of subsidiary companies
At 30 June 2016:
• The Chairman of Genesis Energy Rt Hon
Dame Jenny Shipley, the Chief Executive
of Genesis Energy, Marc England, and the
General Counsel and Company Secretary
of Genesis Energy, Maureen Shaddick, were
Directors of the following wholly owned
subsidiaries1: Genesis Power Investments
Limited, Kupe Holdings Limited, GP No. 2
Limited and GP No. 5 Limited.
• Andrew Donaldson, the Chief Financial
Officer (who completed his tenure with
the Company on 22 July 2016), Warwick
Williams, the Group Risk and Analytics
Manager, and Matthew Hooker (resident
Singapore-based Director and employed
by the Genesis Energy captive manager
Willis Management (Singapore) Pte
Limited) were Directors, and Maureen
Shaddick, the Alternate Director to
Andrew Donaldson, of Genesis Energy’s
captive insurance company incorporated
in Singapore, Genesis Energy Insurance
Pte Limited.
Indemnity and insurance
In accordance with section 162 of the
Companies Act and the Company’s
Constitution, Genesis Energy has indemnified
and arranged insurance for all current and
former Directors and executive officers of
the Company and its subsidiary companies in
respect of all liabilities to persons (other than
the Company or a related body corporate),
to the extent permitted by law, which arise
out of the performance of their normal duties
as Directors or executive officers, unless
the liability relates to conduct involving a lack
of good faith.
The Company holds:
• Prospectus liability insurance in relation to
its Retail Bond issue in December 2008,
Capital Bond issue in April 2011, US
Private Placement Long-Term Bonds in
2014 and New Zealand Senior Retail and
Institutional Bonds in 2016
• Prospectus liability and cost and expenses
liability insurance in respect of the
Prospectus registered on 13 March 2014
(as amended on 18 March 2014) for the
Company’s initial public offering of shares
in the Company.
In authorising the insurances to be effected,
each Director signed a certificate stating
that, in their opinion, the cost of the
insurance is fair to the Company.
Use of Company information
No notices have been received by the Board
of Genesis Energy under section 145 of the
Companies Act with regard to the use of
Company information received by Directors
in their capacities as Directors of the
Company or its subsidiary companies.
Disclosures of Directors’ interests in share
transactions
In accordance with section 211(1)(e) of the
Companies Act , there were no Directors’
interests in share transactions for FY2016.

Directors’ interests in shares
Directors disclosed the following relevant interests in shares as at 30 June 2016:

Distribution of ordinary shares and shareholdings as at 27 July 2016

DIRECTOR

SIZE OF THE HOLDING

RELEVANT INTEREST HELD IN SHARES

Jenny Shipley

14,693

Joanna Perry

27,306

John Dell

27,526

John Leuchars

131,600

Graeme Milne

27,306

Rukumoana Schaafhausen

5,461

Douglas McKay

13,240

Twenty largest registered shareholders as at 27 July 2016
NAME

% OF
SHARES

Her Majesty the Queen in Right of New Zealand

512,319,073

51.23

Citibank Nominees (New Zealand) Limited *

26,864,557

2.69

HSBC Nominees (New Zealand) Limited *

18,923,092

1.89

HSBC Nominees (New Zealand) Limited A/C State Street *

18,489,017

1.85

National Nominees New Zealand Limited *

16,765,827

1.66

RBC Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited

16,551,043

1.66

Accident Compensation Corporation *

14,747,619

1.48

JP Morgan Chase Bank NA NZ *

14,069,548

1.40

Custodial Services Limited A/C 3

13,659,102

1.37

ANZ Wholesale Australasian Share Fund *

10,777,134

1.08

FNZ Custodians Limited

10,313,646

1.03

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited

8,221,163

0.82

Forsyth Barr Custodians Limited

8,113,415

0.81

Custodial Services Limited A/C 2

6,302,129

0.63

Investment Custodial Services Limited

5,998,733

0.60

ANZ Custodial Services New Zealand Limited *

5,602,213

0.56

Public Trust Class 10 Nominees Limited *

5,204,318

0.52

BNP Paribas Nominees (NZ) Limited *

5,147,067

0.52

JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited

5,048,185

0.51

Custodial Services Limited A/C 4

4,970,177

0.50

728,087,058

72.81%

* In the above table, the shareholding of New Zealand Central Securities Depository Limited (‘NZSCD’) has
been allocated to the applicable members of NZSCD.

Substantial security holders
The following information is given pursuant to sub-part 5 of part 5 of the Financial Markets
Conduct Act 2013.
According to notices given to the Company, the substantial security holder in the Company
and its relevant interests are noted below:
DATE OF
SUBSTANTIAL
SECURIT Y NOTICE

Her Majesty the Queen
in Right of New Zealand

1 Albert Brantley ceased to be a Director of these wholly owned subsidiaries on 29 April 2016.

6 July 2015

% OF
SHAREHOLDERS

NUMBER OF
ORDINARY SHARES

% OF
ORDINARY SHARES

4,597

9.19

3,118,212

0.31

38,591

77.13

87,261,183

8.73

5,001 – 10,000

3,376

6.75

24,200,533

2.42

10,001 – 50,000

3,073

6.14

60,294,998

6.03

50,001 – 100,000

226

0.45

15,675,776

1.57

Greater than 100,001

169

0.34

809,449,298

80.94

50,032

100.00

1,000,000,000

100.00

1 to 1,000
1,001 – 5,000

Totals

Debt listings
Genesis Energy’s subordinated, unsecured capital bonds are listed on the New Zealand Debt Market Exchange.
Distribution of holders of quoted securities

NUMBER OF
SHARES

Total

NUMBER OF
SHAREHOLDERS

RELEVANT INTEREST
IN THE NUMBER
OF SHARES

% OF SHARES
HELD AT DATE
OF NOTICE

519,723,781

51.97

INVESTOR RANGES: 27 JULY 2016 SECURIT Y CODE: GPFL A
RANGE

HOLDER

% OF HOLDERS

ISSUED CAPITAL

% ISSUED CAPITAL

–

–

–

–

147

5.49

735,000

0.37

520

19.44

4,964,000

2.48

1,629

60.90

45,200,500

22.60

240

8.97

19,757,000

9.88

139

5.20

129,343,500

64.67

2,675

100.00

200,000,000

100.00

HOLDER

% OF HOLDERS

ISSUED CAPITAL

% ISSUED CAPITAL

–

–

–

–

1 to 1,000
1,001 – 5,000
5,001 – 10,000
10,001 – 50,000
50,001 – 100,000
Greater than 100,001
Totals

INVESTOR RANGES: 27 JULY 2016 SECURIT Y CODE: GNE030
RANGE

1 to 1,000
1,001 – 5,000

129

16.41

645,000

0.65

5,001 – 10,000

203

25.83

1,862,000

1.86

10,001 – 50,000

342

43.51

8,952,000

8.95

50,001 – 100,000

55

7.00

4,218,000

4.22

Greater than 100,001

57

7.25

84,323,000

84.32

786

100.00

100,000,000

100.00

Totals
Waivers from the New Zealand
NZX has granted a waiver in relation to
NZX Rule 9.2.1 to permit the Company
to enter into transmission agreements
with Transpower which constitute material
transactions with a related party without
obtaining shareholder approval, where
those agreements are entered into in order
to comply with the Electricity Industry
Participation Code and the amounts payable
under those agreements are determined in
accordance with the transmission pricing
methodology and regulated under the
Electricity Industry Participation Code and
Part 4 of the Commerce Act 1986 (subject
to certain conditions). As a condition of this
waiver, the Company is required to disclose
in its Annual Report the total amount of
fees payable by the Company to Transpower
under the transmission agreements for the
relevant financial year. For the financial year
under review, this amount is $12,990,835.

Donations
In accordance with section 211(1)(h) of
the Companies Act 1993, Genesis Energy
records that it made donations of $25,056
during the year ended 30 June 2016.
Credit rating
As at the date of this Annual Report,
Standard & Poor’s long-term credit rating
for Genesis Energy was BBB+ Stable.
Exercise of NZX disciplinary powers
The NZX did not exercise any of its powers
under Listing Rule 5.4.2 in relation to
Genesis Energy during FY2016.
Auditor’s fees
As noted, Deloitte has continued to
act as auditor for the Company and the
amount payable by Genesis Energy and its
subsidiaries to Deloitte, for audit fees and
non-audit work fees undertaken in respect
of FY2016, are set out in Note 4 to the
Financial Statements.

Shareholder restrictions
For information about Genesis Energy’s
ordinary shares, specifically certain information
about the rights, privileges, conditions and
limitations, including restrictions on transfer,
that attach to fully paid ordinary shares in
Genesis Energy Limited, please refer to the
information at www.genesisenergy.co.nz/
documents/10180/14637/Information+
about+Genesis+Energy+Ordinary+Shares
pdf/8b951121-da5f-4fc0-a569de714136420c
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Directory
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman
Dame Jenny Shipley, DNZM

Deputy Chairman
Joanna Perry, MNZM

Maury Leyland

Rukumoana Schaafhausen

John Leuchars

Mark Cross

Graeme Milne, ONZM

Douglas McKay, ONZM

DIRECTORY

EXECUTIVE
MANAGEMENT TEAM

Chief Executive
Marc England
Chief Financial Officer
Chris Jewell
Executive General Manager
Corporate Affairs and Transformation
Dean Schmidt

Executive General Manager
Generation and Wholesale
Tracey Hickman
Executive General Manager
Technology and Digital
Jennifer Cherrington-Mowatt
Executive General Manager
People and Culture (acting)
Andrew Steele

AUDITOR

SOLICITORS

Andrew Dick of Deloitte has been
appointed to perform the audit on
behalf of the Auditor-General

Russell McVeagh

BANKERS

Westpac

OFFICE LOCATIONS

Head Office
Genesis Energy Building
660 Great South Road,
Greenlane, Auckland 1051
P: 64 9 580 2094
F: 64 9 580 4894
E: info@genesisenergy.co.nz
investor.relations@genesisenergy.co.nz
board@genesisenergy.co.nz
W: genesisenergy.co.nz
energyonline.co.nz
Hamilton
500 Victoria Street, Hamilton
65 Bryce Street, Hamilton

Huntly Power Station
Cnr Te Ohaki and
Hetherington Roads, Huntly
Tokaanu Power Station
State Highway 47, Tokaanu
Registered Office
660 Great South Road,
Greenlane, Auckland,
New Zealand

